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Rep{rrt on lhe Audit ofthe Standalonc Financial statemcnts

Opinion

We have audited thc accompanying Standalonc tinancial starcments of popular Mega Motors
(lndia) Priyate Limited("rrs Compunf'\ rr hiclt conrpriscs rhe Balance Sheet as at I l', March 2024.

the Statetncnt of Prolit and Loss. Statenrent ol ( hangcs in t:quit.'- and Statement ofcash tlows tbr the
year thsn cnded. and notes to the tlnancial slatcments. including a summary of material accounting
policic: and (rtherexpldnator) inlblnatiorr.

ln our opinion and to the best ol our intbrrration and according to the explanalions given to us. the

aforesaid standalone financial statements grve the inlormation required by the Act in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in contbrmity with the accounting principles generally accepted

in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Companl as ar 3l'' March 2024, and pROFIT, Changes in

Equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducte'd our audil in accordancr-' rr ilh thc Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section

I 43( l0 ) ol thc Companies Act. 20 I i. Our rcspons ibilit ies under those Standards are lurther described

in the Auditor's Responsibilities fbr the Audil ()l lhc lrinancial Statements section ofour report. We

are independent of the Company in accordancc $ith the Code ol'Ethics issued by the Institute ol
Chanered Accountants of India together rvith thc cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the tlnancial statements under the provisions ol'the Cornpanies Act. l0l3 and the Rules thereunder.

and we have tulfllled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the

Codc ol'Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence ue have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis tbr our opinion.
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lnformation olher than the [-inancial Stalemcnts and Auditors Reporl thereon

The Company's Board ol' Directors is responsible for the lnformation other than the financial

statements and auditors repon thereon. l'he said inlormation comprises the information included in

the Directors Report (Other inlbrmation). but does not include the financial statements and our audit

repon rhereon. 
-l'he 

Other lnlbrmation is expected to be made available to us after the date of this

auditors'repon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express

any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

inlormation identified above when it becomes available, and, in doing so, consider whether the other

intbrmation is materially inconsislent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the

audit. othr.'rrvise appear to be malcriall\ nlisstated.

When we read the other inlbrntation" il'we concludc that there is a material misstatemenl therein, we

are required to communicate the matter to those charged rvith governance.

Responsibility of Management and l'hose Charged with Governance for

the Standslone Financia I SlatemeIts

'l he Company's Board ot'Directors is rcsponsible fbr the matters stated in section 134(5) olthe

Companies Act. 20ll ('the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the tinancial position, financial performance and cash

flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indi4

including rhe accounling Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also

includes maintenance ofadequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities: selection and application ol'approprialc accounting policies: making judgments and

estimatcs lhal arc rL'asonahle and prLrdcrrt: arrd dcsign. intplcmentation and maintenance ol'adequate

intemal tlnancial controls. that were operating cllLctivell lbr ensuring the accuracy and compleleness

ofthe accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presenlalion olthe financial statement that

give a true and fbir vieu and are ti'ee liorn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the tlnancial sktements. ntanaBemcnt is responsible fbr assessing the Company's ability

to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable. matlers related to going concem and using

the goinB conccrn basis ol'accounting unless nranagement cither intends to liquidate the Company or

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting

process,
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Auditor's Responsibilitv for the Audit of the l'inancial Statemcnts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurancc about whelher the financial stalements as a whole

are lree from material misstatement. whether due to tiaud or enor, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs *ill always detect a material misstalement when it

exists. Misstatements can arise from lraud or error and are considered material il, individually or in

the aggegale, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentitl and assess the risks of rnaterial rnisstalement ol'the financial statements. whelher due to

tiaud or r".rror. dcsign and perlirrnr audit prtrccdures rr"-sponsive to those risks. and obtain audit

evidence that is sutlicient and appropriatc to prolide a basis tirr our opinion. The risk ofnot

detecting a material misstatement resulting liorn tiaud is higher than lbr one resulting from

error. as f'raud may involve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriale in the circumstances. Under seclion 143(3Xi) ofthe Companies

Act. 2013. we are also responsible tbr expressing our opinion on whether the company has

adequate internal tinancial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Concludc on thc appropriatencss ol' managcrlcnt's use' o1'lhe going concern basis ofaccounting

and. based on thl' audit evidence. obtaincd. u hclher a material uncerlaint) exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going

concem. lf we conclude thal a material uncenainly exists. we are required to draw attention in

our auditor's repon to the related disclosurcs in the tinancial statements or, if such disclosures

are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date ol our auditor's repon. However. t'uture events or condilions may cause the

Company to cease lo continue as a going corrcern.

Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content ofthe financial statements, including the

disclosures. and whelher the financial statemenls represent the underlying transaclions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged rvith governance regarding, among other maners, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and signiticant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal conlrol that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters thal may reasonabl-r be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable. related sateguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulator) Requircments

As required by the Companies (Audiror's Repon) Order, 2020 ('1he Order"), issued by the

Central Covemment of lndia in terms of sub-seclion ( I | ) of section 143 of the Companies Act,

2013. we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe

Order. to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section I43(3) ofthe Act. we repon that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

b. ln our opinion. proper books ol'account as requircd bl law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears fiom our examination ol'thosc bools ercept tbr the matters stated in paragraph 2(iIl)
below on reponing under Rule I I(g).

c. The Balance Sheet. the Statelncnt ol l)rotit and l.oss. Staternenl ol Changes in Equity and the

Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Repon are in agreement with the books ofaccount.

d. ln our opinion. the aforesaid slandalone t'lnancial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section ll3 of thc' Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules. 20 | 4.

e. On the basis of the written representations received fiom the directors taken on record by the

Board ol Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31" March 2024 from being

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act.

ti With respect to thc adequacy ol the internal llnancial controls over financial reponing of the

Company and the operating cll,;ct ive'nc'ss ol sLrch controls- ret'er our separate Repon in Annexure

g. ln our opinion. the managerial remun!'ration lbr the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid /

provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions ofsection 197 read

with Schedule V to the Act.
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h. The rernarks relating to the nlaintenance ol'accounts and other matlers connected therewith are as

stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporling. under Section l4l(3Xb) and paragraph 2(i)(f)

below on reporling under Rule I l(g).

i. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

ll of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,20l4, in our opinion and to the best ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in

Note No.27 ofthe financial slatemenls;

b. The Company did not have any' long-term contracts including derivative contracls for

which there were an1 material lbreseeable losscs,

l'here were no amounls which were required to be transferred lo the lnvestor Education

and Protection l-'und b1 the Companl.

d. (i)'l'he management. as cxplained in Note No. 32-lV of the financial slatements, has

represented that. to the best ol'it's knor.vledge and belief. other lhan as disclosed in the

notes to the accounts, no t'unds have been advanced or loaned or invesled (either from

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company

to or in any olher person(s) or entity(ies), including loreign entities ("lntermediaries"),

with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary

shall. whether. directll or indirectll lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in

any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) 'l'he rnanagement. as e\plained in Note No. 32-V olthe financial statements. has

represented. that- to thc best ol'it's knowledge and heliel'. other than as disclosed in the

notes to the accounts. no lunds have heen receive'd bv thc company fiom any person(s) or

entitv(ics). including tbreign cntitics ("lunding Panics"). with the understanding. whether

recordcd in writing or otlrcnr isc. that lhc conlpan) shall. whether, directly or indirectly,

lend or invest in other persons or !'ntities identitled in any manner whalsoever by or on

behalfolthe Funding Pany ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security

or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiariesl and

( iii) Based on such audit procedures. that we considered reasonable and appropriale in the

circumstances. nothing has conre to our notice that has caused us to believe thal the

representations under sub-clause (i)and (ii) contain any material mis-statemenl.

e. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and hence reporting

under this clause is not applicable .

;i
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ll Based on our examination which included test checks, the company, has used accounting

soflware for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) l'acility except in respect of payroll records wherein the sofiware did not have

the audit trail feature enablcd throughout thc )car. The audit trail fhcility has been

operating in all other accounting sotiuarc tiorn 25th Septernber 2023 tbr all relevant

transactions recorded in suclt sotiware. I-urther. lbr thc periods where audit trail (edit log)

thcility was enabled and opcratcd. ne did not come across any instance of audit trail

t'eature being tampercd u ith.

For R.G.N. PRTCE & CO.
Chartered Aacountants

P.M. VEERAMANI
Partner
M. l{o. 23933, FR. o. O027t5S



ANNT-XL]RT:

i) Fixed Assets

(a) (A) The Company has maintained records showing parliculaB of Property, Plant and Equipment

including quantitative details and situation.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing t'ull particulars of intangible assets.

(b) These Propenies, Plant and Equiprnents have been physically verified by the management at

reasonable intervals and no nraterial discrepancies have been noliced on such physical

verification.

(c) The Company does not own any inrrnovable propenies other than improvements to leasehold

buildings.

(d) The compan) has not revalued its Propertl. Plant and liquipments during the year.

(e) As per the inlormation and explanations t'urnished to us. no proceedings have been initiated or

are pending against the company lbr holding any benami property under lhe Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 ol' 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii) lnventories

(a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable

intervals and in our opinion the coverag,e and proccdure ol such veriftcalion by the management

is appropriate. The discrepancics noticed on phvsical veritication of stock were not malerial

having regard to the size ofthe opcration ol the compan).

(b) The compan)' has renewed working capital lirrits in excess offive crore rupees, in aggregate,

tiom banks or tjnancial institutions on the basis of securitl olcurrent assets during the year. In

our opinion and according to the intbrmation and explanations fumished to us, the quarterly

retums or statements filed by the companl with such banks or financial institutions are in

agreemenl with the books ofaccount ofthe Company.

lll ln vance Cuarantees

During the year. the company has not made any investments in or provided any guarantee or security

or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,

Limited Liability Pannerships or an) olhcr parties olher than those given in the normal course of

business. The details ofguarantecs pror ided b1 lhc Compan) are as belor.r:



(a) During the year the company has not provided guarantee on loans availed by its subsidiary

company from banks / financial institutions. The aggregate amount of guarantee outstanding as

on date of Balance Sheet in respect ol loans availed bv its subsidiary company from bank /
financial institutions is Rs.760.60 Million.

(b) ln our opinion and according on the inlbrnration and cxplanations lumished to us. the

investments made. guarantees provided. sccurity given and the terms and conditions ofthe grant

of all loans and advances in the naturc ol'loans and guarantees provided are prima lacie not

preiudicial to the cornpan\'s intcresl.

(c) The Company has not granted any loans to any other entity during the year and hence this suL

clause on schedule of repayment ol loans granted is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not granted any loans to any other entity during the year and hence this sub-

clause on details ofoverdue loans is not applicable.

(e) The Company has not granted any loans to any other entity during the year and hence this sub.

clause on loans which have fallen due and renewed / extended is not applicable.

(l) During the year. the company has not granl,"'d an_l loans/advances in the nature ofloans which

are repayable on demand or without specif-ring an1 tenns or period ol-repayment

iv)Comrrliance with Sec 185 and Scc 186

ln our opinion and according to the intbrmation and explanations given to us, the company had not

granted any loans to panies to whom provisions olSec 185 applies and consequenlly clauses relating

to terms and conditions of loan, payment of interest and repayment of principal and stalus of overdue

are not applicable.

Since the guarantee was provided to a whollv owned subsidiary, the provisions of Section I 86 are not

applicable. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

company has not made any investments, guarantees during the year other than the above to which the

provisions ofSection I85 and 186 ofthe Companies Act 2013 applies.

In our opinion and according to the intbnnatiorr and erplanations given to us. the company has not

accepted any deposits or amounts deenred to bc deposits to which the provisions of Section 73 to 76

of the Companies Act. 201 3 and rules made therc' under applies.

vi) Cost Records

ln our opinion and according to the inlbrmation and explanations given to us, the Central

Governmenl has not prescribed thc maintenance of cost records under Section 148(l) of the

Companies Act, 201 3, for the company.

v) Fixed Deoosits



vii) Statutorr Dues

(a) The company was generally regular in depositing with appropriate aulhorities undisputed

statutory dues towards Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Coods &
Service Tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues, wherever applicable. There were no

arrears of undisputed slatutory dues as on the last day of the financial year for a period of more

than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the r!.cords ofthe conrpanl. the t'ollorving disputed statutory dues are outstanding

as on tlre date ol'balance shee't.

Amount (Rs.

ln lalihs)

viii) []ndisclosed Inconrc

ln our opinion and according to the inlbrmation and explanations given to us. there are no

lransactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the l ear in the ta\ asse.ssments under the lncome Tax Acr, I 96 | .

(a) ln our opinion and according to the intbrmation and explanations given to us, the company has

not defaulted in repaymenl of interest and principal to any lender.

(b) Based on the intbrmation and explanations given to us, the company is not declared wilful

defaulter by any bank or tinancial institution or any other lender;

(c) ln our opinion and according to the infbrmation and explanations given to us, the company has

utilized the money obtained b)., \\ay ol'lcrrr loans during the year tbr the purposes lor which

they were obtained.

(d) According to the intbrmation and explanations given to us. and the procedures performed by us,

and on an overall eramination ol'thc tinancial statements of the company. we repon thal no

I'unds raised on shon-term basis have been used tor long-term purposes by the company

Name of

Statute
Natu re of Dues

Period lo n hich the amount

relates

Forum r. here the

dispute is

pending

Ccnlral

I:\cisc Acl

194.1

Ccntral l:rcisc l.().1 05.0{.1{x)5 - I t.oti.2(x)7

Commissioner

(Appeals). Cenlral

E\cise. Customs &

Service I ar

lnconrc Ia\
Act. l96l

lncomc Ia\
0.70

9l3

Assessmenl Years 2013-14 and

20t5-t6

lncome Tar

Appellate lribunal.

Assessing Ol'llcer

KVA I Acr

2003
Kerala VA I

20 t0- I t. 20 t2. t3. 2015-t 6. 20 t6
t7

Assistant/Deput)

Commissioner

Commercial Ta\€s

I

ix) Repavment of l.oans



(e) According to the infbrmation and explanations given to us and on an overall examination ofthe

financial statements ol'thc conrpanr. \\e rcpon thal (he company has not taken any funds from

any entily or person on accounl of or to rncel the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

(0 According to the inlormation and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we

report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in

its subsidiaries. joint ventures or associate companies.

x) Application ol t'unds raised through public ollcr

(a) The company has not raised any funds through public ofl'er during the year.

(b) The company has not raised any funds during the year by way of preferential allotment or

private placement olshares or conveniblc dcbcntures (t'ull1. panially or optionally conve(ible)

xi) F raLrds

(a) According to the inlbrmation and explanations given to us. no traud, on or by the company, has

been noticed or reponed during the year.

(b) As no fraud, on or by the company. has been no(iced or reponed during the year, reponing under

this clause as per section 143(12) is not applicable.

(c) As represenled to us by the management. there are no whistle blower complaints received by the

company during the year.

xii) Nidhi Compan.v

In our opinion and according to the inlbrmation and explanations given to us, the company is not a

nidhi cornpanl'and hence this clausc in not applicablc to the company.

xiii) Related Pany Transactions

ln our opinion and according to the inlbrmation and explanations given to us, alltransactions with the

related panies are in compliance will'r sectiolr lTTandsection I 88 of the Companies Act, 2013 where

ever applicable and the details have been disclosed in the tinancial statements as required by the

appl icable accounting standards

xiv ) lnternal Audit

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature ol its business



(b) we have considered the intemal audit repons of the company issued till date. for the period

under audit

xv) Non Cash fransactions

As explained to us, lhe company has not entered into any non-cash transactions wilh directors or

other percons during the year

The company is not required to be rcgistcrcd under section l5-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act,

1934 and hence this clause is not applicable lo thc Compan).

xvii) Cash Losses

The company has not incuned cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding

financial year

rviii ) Resisnation ol' Auditor

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditon during the year and accordingly this clause is

not applicable.

xix) Cointr ('onccrn

According to lhc inlbrmation and !'\planations given to us and on the basis ofthe flnancial ralios,

ageing and expected dates of rcalization ol' llnancial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other

information accompanying the tinancial statements. our knowledge of the Board of Directors and

managemenl plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,

nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe thal any material uncertainty exists as

on the date of the audil report that company is not capable ol meeting its liabilities existing at the date

of balance sheet as and when they tbll due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We. however. state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability ofthe company. We further

state that our reponing is based on the t'acts up to the date ol the audit report and we neither give any

guaranlee nor any assurance that all liabilitics falling due within a period of one year from the

balance sheet dale, will get discharged by the company as and when they falldue.

(a) The company does not have an) unspcnl antount towards CSR on item olher than ongoing

project and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(b) The company does not have an) unspcnt anrount duc in respect of ongoing project towards

CSR and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable

xvi) Reqistration with RBI

xx) Corporate Social Responsibility



xxi) Observalions bv cornDonent auditors

The Company' is not rc.quired to prcparc consolidatcd tjnancial statements as per Rule 6 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules. l0ll as thc linancial slatcments ol the Company along with its

subsidiary company is included in thc consolitiated tlnancial statements ol its holding company.

Hence. reporting under this clause in respect ol'qualitications or adverse remarks by the auditors in

the Companies (Auditor's Repon) Order reporls ofthe subsidiary company is not applicable.

For R.G.N. PRTCE & CO.
Ch.rtered Aaaountanti

%o-rc-.-z-r, -
PM. VEERAMANT --- "-
Pa,tner
M. t{o.23933, fR. No, OO27t5S



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE

STANDALONI FINANCIAI, STATEMENTS OF POPULAR MEGA MOTORS (INDIA)

PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of SuEsection 3 of Section 143 of

the Companies Act,2013 (*the Acl")

We have audited the intemal tinancial controls over tinancial reporting of Popular Mega Motors

(lndia) Private l.imited ('Ihe Conrpany'") as ol' March I l. 2024 in conjunction with our audit ol the

standalone tlnancial statements ol'the Compan,r lbr the )ear endcd on that date.

Managemenl's Responsibilitl' for lntcrnal linancial Controls

The Company's management is responsible fbr establishing and maintaining intemal tlnancial

controls based on "the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Inlernal Financial Controls Over Financial Reponing issued by the Institute ofChanered Accountants

of India". These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal tlnancial controls that were operating etlectivel,v lbr ensuring the orderly and efficienl

conducl of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the

prevention and detection ol iiauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, and the timely preparation ol'reliable llnancial intbrmation. as required under the Companies

Act. 20I 3.

Auditors' Responsibilitr

Our responsibilitr is to cxpress an opinion on thc Company's internal llnancial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit

of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Cuidance Note") and the Standards on

Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section I43(10) of the Companies Act,

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and. both issued by the Instilute ofChanered Accountants of lndia. Those

Standards and the Guidance Note require thal we comply with ethical requiremenls and plan and

pertbrm the audit to obtain reasonablc assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls

over financial reponing was established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in

all material respects.

Our audit involves perlbrming procedLrrcs to ohtain audit evidencr' about the adequacy ot'the inlemal

financial controls system over linancill rcponing and thcir operating eflbctiveness. Our audit of
internal tlnancial controls over linancial reponing included obtaining an understanding of intemal

financial controls ovc'r l'inancial rcp(n1intl. as:cssing thr' risk that a malerial weakness exists. and

tesring and evaluating the design and operating ellectiveness ol intemal control based on the assessed

risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement. including the assessmenl of the

risks olmaterial misstatement ofthe tlnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

9a.
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We belicve that the audit evidencc \\c lravc obtained is suflicienl and appropriate to provide a basis

lor our audit opinion on the Comparr;'s internal tjnancial controls system over financial reponing.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Ovcr Financial Rcporting

A company's internal financial control over tinancial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements lbr external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

company's internal flnancial control over financial reponing includes those policies and procedures

that

l) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions ofthe asscts ol'lhe compan.y:

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that

receipts and expenditures of the cornpanl are being made only in accordance with authorisations

of management and directors ol'the companl: and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets thal could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent l,imitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitatiorrs ol internal llnancial controls over financial reporting, including

the possibility olcollusion or improper management override ol'controls. material misstatements due

to error or fraud may occur and nol be detccrcd. Also. projections olany evaluation ofthe intemal

financial controls over financial reporting to l'uture periods are subject to the risk that the internal

financial control over tinancial reponing may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,

or that the degree ol'compliance rvith llre policir's or procedures may deleriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects. an adequate intemal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at March 31.2024. based on "the internal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considcring the essential components of internal control stated in

the Cuidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reponing issued by the

lnstitute ofChartered Accountanls of India".

For R.G.N. PRTCE & CO.
Chartered Aaaountants

P.M. VEERAMANI
Paalnea
M. t{o. 23933, tR. l{o.0027tSS



-^ popuLen Mece Morons ttNot.tr pntve.rt LtMt.rro. xutruxaren cgxtRE. IuaMANclr-Nrr. xocHt - 6Et02s

SIATEMENT OF TOTAL INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.202,1

PAN: AABCP6IoSH / DCIT/ACIT CIR 4(r).KOCHI

INCO}IE FRONI BT SI\ESS

Profit as per Statemmt of Profil and toss 14.17.80J63

Add: kEdmissibl€s

Incore Us 2(24Xx) - ABRY colLctod from cmploy€€s not paid

Disalowance u/s 438 -Delayed r€rnittance to MSME

Disallowance u/s 40A(9) - Cont ibution to Employ€e Benevolenl Fund - included in Stafiwethrc - Note 22

lncorn€ ds 2(24Xx) r.w 36( I Xval Enploy€e Contribution of Delayed Paymert of Esl, PF

Provisio. for l,eave encashft€ilt - included in Salari€s and Allo*ances - Note 22

IrterEst on MSME dues dcbitcd to Stateme of Ptofit ard lrss

hter€st l,s 234C

Provision for Gmtuity - Note 22

CSR Exp€nditure - Note 25

D€prcciation considered s€parately - Note 24 (olher lhan depr€ciation on ROU)

trss: Admissibles

DeFeciation as per IT Rules

lnteresl on lncome tax rclind - Note I 9

Ind AS adjustmenls - Refer Note 4 below

Interest ircone as per actuanal valuation

Provision for Doublful Debts wrinen Back

lnterest income considercd sep€rately - Note l9

Profit on s3le ol investments considered separately - Note l9

Profit on sale of asset - Note I 9

LIC croup Cralutiy Premia paid

lrave eocashmenl paid

Divideid income considercd s@arately - Note I 9

lncomc from Busi ess

I\CO\IE FRO}I ( \PITAI- (;,\I\S

a) Sale of lnveslmmb - Ouoted Shares

1,56,1t7

2,45,000

3,30,?30

22,353

4,,14,01 I

49,6t 3

34,00 t

r,06,35,698

30,71,&2

4,1r,73,9t5 5,61,63.699

4,18,1E,751

9,6't.949

1.39,t 1.812

2,6t,698

13,s8.287

4,t 5.7 5',7

35,86,51r

9?.?8,755

6020.302

6,44,468

I,26.341

19.?9.43.962

7.88.r2.6t8

(r) t ng Tcrm Crpitrl Caio or lrle ofquoted ifttrum€Dtr

Net t ng T6rn Capiial Gain as per Annexwe L l

Lass: t ng Tenn CapiEl l.rss ofAY 2021-22 sel off

(b) Shon Term C.pitrl Cri[ on.ale ofquoted instruments

Nei Shon Tefm CapilalCain as per Annexure l.l

34.24.638

i7.8 r.7 n )

ll.90.41.325

28.06.1r00

t5.10.053

26,42.9L1

r.63.873

INCO}IE FRONI Ol HER SOI. RCE5

lncorre fronr ( apital Gains

Cross Total Incom€

Tsrahle lncome

lndia

Less: Deductions under Chlpter vl A

8oJJAA Additional Employee Cost (Annexure Ill)

Dividmd income

lnterest on income tax refund

lnteresl income liom banks

126.347

9.67,949

4.t5,757

l2.l-1.61i. t78

1.10.45.522

l1.21.22.656

(Mega

Managi 0lrcdor

For Popular Mega Mohrs (lndid Pvt'

r

/.<o>
// \Y

k$

\
lopulrhr



Tax due @ 227o on nonnal income

Tax due @ l0% on long tmn capital gain

Tax due @ 15% on short tenn capital gain

8!4:Surcharge @10%

Add: Health and Educarion ce.s (a 49'o

Ltssi lnterest u/s 234C

I4Sg TDSITCS (Refer Note 7 below)

TDS

TCS

I5E Advance Tax

t6.06.2023

t4.09.2023

38.00,000

60,00,000

2,40,93,488

2,54,293

24,581

2,43,72.362

24,37,236

2,68,09,598

10,72,384

2,78.81.982

2,03,26,273

75.55.709

98,00,000

22,44,291

34,00r

RefuDd Due 22,1O,290

Bank Name

MICR

TFSC CODE

2) Crrry forward of Los.

THE FEDERAL BANK LIMITED

13800200100145

CT]RRENT ACCOUNT

682049018

FDRIO00 t 180

Opening Balance Adjustment dunng year Balance carry for$ard

Long Tem Capikl Loss 202t -22 7,81,711 ?.81.711

-- The Compa ny had exceosed optron ro pay ux under lower rale as per Section I I 5 Bd{ ftom AY 20-21 . Accordingly,
rl 

the mte oftar is taken ar 220o plus applrcable surchargeand cess

4) lnd AS.djustment chsrged to Stat€ment of P.oflt rnd Loss

lnrerest on Lease Liabiliry 1,67.94,894

Amortisarion on RiShl ofUs€ ( RoU) Assel 6.45.46,665

l-ease Liabilty Written Back

L€ase accrued during the year (9.55.1.t.475)

Lcnse Rent ( oncession

Interest lncome on rent d€posit (25.71.950)

Gain on accounting oflnvestmenls al Fairvalue (1 ,64.14,',l tll
lotal (l,l9,r r,8r2)

5) Credit for TCS clained is in r.sp€ct ofr€hicles purchased and capilalised as fixed assels.

6) Dedudion under 8oJJAA claimed represent th€ 2nd installmenl of deduction lbr AY 2023-24 and 3rd installnent ofdeduction for AY 2022-23

l DS/TCS rlaimed in Mcmo

Psrticulars

TDS As per 26 AS

TCS As per 26 AS

1.35.00.414

?,E0,551

Amount(Rs)

1.42.80.966

ia) Pvt. or Popular Mega

7)

rDs,.rcs crainfdf,iBqffula Mega M

Managing

Ii/ oto rs ( I nd i aT?v,trEEos

Notes:

l) Es!4ssec@s!s!b



Popular Megs Motors (India) Privlte Limited

Balsnce Sheet

{All amounts in INR millions)

As at
Note 3l Marcb 2024P!rticulars

Assels

Non{urreaa $tets

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work-in-progess

Right-of-Us€ Asset

Other lntangible assets

Financialassets

lnvestrDents

Other financial ass€ts

Deferred t8x assets (net)

Other non-currcnt assets

Totd Dor{urent assat!

Curetrt r3!et3

Inventories

Financial assets

Trade rcceivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances olier than cash and

cash equivalena

(xher financial assets

lncome Tax ass€ts (net)

Other cudent assats

Tottl curretrt $sets

Total assots

Equtty strd lhbilitie.

Eq[lty
Equity share capital

Other Equity

Totrl Equity

LhbIitie3

Notr{urrcBt lirbiliaies

Financial liabilities

Lease Liability

Borrowings

Provisions

Totll ron{urrert lisbilities

Current liabllldes

Financial liabiliti€s
t ease Liability

Bonowings

Trade payables

- Outstandirg dues to Micro Small and

Medium Enterpris€s

- Outstanding dues of crEditors olher than

Micro Srnall ard Medium Entcrprises

Other fi nancial liabilities

Pmvisions

Other curIeol liabilities

Totrl curretra lhbilities

Totd Eqdty snd li.bllltiei
Mrtcrirl Accootrtirg pollcie!

The accompanying notes form an integral palt of the

balance sheet as per our rEpon of even date attached

As rt
3l Msrch 2023

t7

3

t7

t2

I{

t7

l2

l6

l3

t4

l5

2-11

Philip

Dtector

2.48t.5t

328.87

8.08

212.U

1.09

319.89

70.56

22.91

60.50

316.18

L06

306.51

1.29

6

4

5

26

l0

5

26

6

288.47

67.t8

24.34

29.2t

1.084.00

1,019.03

1.034.2s

t,074.617

8

9

1,092.61

t24.43

9.48

969.43

68.13

4.78

0.82

10.94

89.28

1.02

r4.85

227.16

2,218.01

-1.2s2.26

69.44

1,091.94

69.44

977.16

1,16t.3t 1.0.16.60

323.24

58.82

t2.42

8.r9.{8

59.53

1,r 87.3 t

t5. l4

90.01

|,561.72

ry,
UY)"'-

Biju Jose [hoEras

Chiel tlil-rutive Oflicer

3s9.70

83.50

9.03

54.99

1,242.33

.152.23

9.59

llt.67

3.28

2.30

2M.15

2.Ot

2.33

I10.5 t

1.753.43

3,252.26

for and on behalf ofthe Board of Direclon of
Popolar Mega Motom (lndie) Privrte l,imited

CIN:U3l l03Kt,l97PTC0l 1748

Fo. R.G.ltl. PRICE & CO.
Charlc,ed Aaaountaats

P.M. VEERAMANI -z-'
Parlner
M. o. 2!933, fR. o. 002785s

Place : Kochi /
Date It.S-24tl7 DIN ;000181t27

Dftctor

DIN :0m1E828

Compaoy Secrctary

3,572.58

___-_ltz!!_



Popular Mega Motors (India) Priv&te Limited

STATEMENT OF AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2024

(All amounrs in NR millions)

Particulars

Exp€nses

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Change in inventory in stock-in-trade

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Prolit before tax

\ote
Year Ended

3l March 2024

13,092.96

I I 1.68

13,204.64

1 I,858.39

34.69

593.40

144.41

105.72

326.25

13.062.86

141.78

141.78

27 .61

(0.87)

r 13.30

1.98

0.50

I14.78

DIN:

g Director

018827

Surya Jacob

Company Secreti

Year Ended

31 March 2023

14,449.54

32.68

t8

19

20

2t

22

23

24

25

r4,482.22

13,381.53

(11t.47)

557 .5',1

t32.71

9t.54

331.31

t 4,323.19

r 59.03

(Loss)/profit beforetax

lncome tax expense

Currenl tax

Deferred tax charge/

(benefiQ

Profit for the ye|r attributable to owners of the

Company

Other comprehensive incom€

Items that v/ill not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement ofnet defined benefit liability/ (asset), net oftax

lncome Tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or

loss

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to ownen of
fte Company

EarningV(Lossy per share (face value ofINR l0 28

Basic (in INR)

Diluted (in NR)

Materisl Accounting Policies I

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of the

statement of profit and lo.. 
", 

p", o*-r.po.t .u.n 18-40

date attached.

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Ch.rl€,ed Accoulltant5

:aukzxatet
P.M. VEERAMANI ?.
Pa.lner
M. io. 23933, fi. o. 0027E5S

Place :Kochi

16.53

r 6.53

t6.79

16.79

26

26

159,03

37 .41

(3.ee)

117.62

( l .34)

(0.34)

tt6.62

for and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private

Limited

S

Director

DIN:00018828

Bij u ose nlas

Date t{. 5'w2.tt Chief Executive O{ficer

Income

Revenue from operations

Other income

Totd income

\



POPULAR MEGA MOTORS (INDIA) PR]VATE LIMITED, COCHIN.25

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(All arnounts in INR millions)

The notes referred to above form an integral part ofthe standalone

cashflow statement as psr our r€port ofeven date attached.

t-or and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of
Popular Megs Motors (India) Priv&te Limited

CIN:tl3 I l03KLI997PTC0l I 748

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Chartered Aacountantt

ffiletta.ou..-
PM. VECRAMANI ---Pa.lner
M. t{o.23933, FR. rio.0027t5S \#Naveen ilip

M Director Director

DIN : 00018828

Place: Kochi Brj u

\9jjz

P&rticulars

For the Yesr etrded

llsr Mrrcb 2024

For the Year ended

f, lst March 2023

B

C

Crrb flords from operrdtrg rcdvities

Net Profit as p€f, profit and loss account

Adjustments for :

Finance charges

Lease Re,lt Concession

Lease Liability written back

Dividend income fiom curr€rt non-trade investments

lnter€st income

Notional lnterest on Reit Deposit

Credit balances written back

LosyProfit on sale of Propefiy, Plant & Equipment

Depr€ciation and anonisation

opendtrg lo$ before worklBg capiarl chrtrge.

Increase in trade rcceivables

lncr€ase in inventori€s

(lncr€ase) / decrease in Other curre[t assets

Increase in other cunent liabilities

Calh genersted froE/ (utcd) in opcrrdoni

Tax€s paid, net ofrefund received

Nct cish Senerstcd from/ (u3.d) itr operrdtrg sctivitle! (A)

Csrh florvs from lDvelthg rcttvitic!

Movement of investrnent in sharcs

Movement of investnent in Mutual Funds

Changes in Capital work-in-Progress

Other Non Curent Asset

lnterest received

Dividend received

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (incl. change in WIP)

Proceeds from sale of Prop€rty, Plant & Equipmenr

Net caih u3cd ln hvertlDg rctivitica (B)

Calh llows from Ihatrcltrg sctivitics

Other Long Tefm Borrowings

Long Term Liabilities

Shon Tenn Borrowings

Lease payments during the year

Interest paid

Net cr3h geoer.ted from flosocing acdvltlc. ( C )

Nel ircre$e ir crsh rtrd crsh equivslertt (A+B+C)

Calh Erd cr.h cquivslerts ot the begitr[lDg ofthe year

Cash Etrd c.3h equlvrlcrtr tt the eEd of the yelr

D

E

F

141.78

t 44.11

(0.73)

(0.r l)
(2.20)

(2.57)

(17.89)

(9.78)

105.72

15s.02

132.71

(r.e3)

(0.48)

(0.r8)

(0.30)

(2.24\

( r l .00)

(4.48)

91.55

-158.62 362.67

(123. r8)

55.60

(140.62)

( r23.36)

(159.83)

6.99

(72.86)

(55.84)

27.07

31.55

81.13

35.72

(4.49') .t5.,

(5.85)

(2s.s1)

(7.02)

(32.10)

2.20

0.13

(s8.12)

t4.26

2.32

(8.84)

(1.06)

( r4.52)

0.30

0.18

(58.04)

5.87

(l r2.07) (71.79)

406.53

5.36

(31.22')

(95.53)

(r 07.58)

(29.16)

(5. r 2)

256.66

(91.37)

(95.87)

171.55 15.14

60.99

12.91

133.91

66.16

72.9t

(refer to note 9 and l0 - Cash and Bank Balances)

Date: tS- S .uz4

DIN : 048827s
Surya Jscob

Company Secretary Chiel Executive Ollicer



Particulars As 8t

I April 2023

Cash flo$s Non cash chrnges As st

-11 Mrrch 2024

Fair value

changes

Others

Non current borrowings+

Current borrowings

Lease liabilities (refer note l7)

I16.15

I,209.68

414.69

406.52

(31.22)

(95.s3) 63.6 r

522.6',7

1,178.45

382.',|'.|

Popular Megr Morors (lndis) Privste Limited

Crsh Flo* Statement (Continued...)

(All amounts in INR in millions)

Recorciliation of fitrsrcial liabilities forming part of finatrciog activities in rccordance with lnd AS 7:

*includes current matuities of long -term bonowings

As per our report ofeven date attached.

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Charle,cd Accourtartt

P.M. VEERAMANI -....
Pa,lne.
M. t{o. 23931, tR. o. 0027t5S

./dl and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of

Populsr Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited

CIN:tl3 I l03KL1997PTC0l I 748

Place

Date ts.s.1.o1+
Kochi

Philip

Mana ng Dfector

DIN: 00018827

Surya Jlcob

Company Secretary

s

Chief Executive Offi

Director

DIN:00018828

\N**P-
e\j4ds6'Thomas

Particulars As at

I A,pril2022

Cash flows Non cash changes As at

3l March 2023

Fair value

chsnges

Others

Non current borrowings*

Current borrowings

trase liabilities (refer note 17)

t 45.31

95 3.01

374.20

(29.16)

256.67

(91.37) I 31.87

1t6.15

1,209.68

4t4.69

s



'1pu1ar i{ega Motorg (Indj.a) Prlvate
,rmited Notes to the financial
'stateaents (continued)

I. Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts in lndian rupees millions)

l.l Company overvierv

Popular Mega Motors (lndia) hivate Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in 1997 as a Private

Limited Company. The Company is engaged in the business of sale and service of commercial vehicles,

sale of spare parts and accessories, The Company is headquartered in Kochi, India and has operations in

Kerala and Tamil Nadu.

1,2 Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

The Company is a subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited whose financial statements are

prepared in accordance with Companies (lndian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 notified under section

133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Acl). as amended and other relevant provisions o,' the Act.

Consequently, these financial statements are prepared in accordance rvith Companies (lndian Accounting

Standard) Rules 2015. Further, being a subsidiary of a listed public company, this Company is also

deemed to be a public company.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is also the Company's functional

currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in rnillions, unlc'ss otherwise stated.

Basis of meosurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for cases where ever fair

value is applicable.

Use ofestimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, managcrnent has made judgcrnents. estimates and assumptions

thai aiTect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities. income

and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most material effects on

the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

u.

C

D

o

o
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i.

f-)ula! !{ega Motors (India) Private
Lr-li-ted Notes to the financia].
statements (continued)

1.3 Material accounting Policies

1.3.1 Property, plant and equipment

It.

ut.

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cosl, which includes capitalized borrowing costs,

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impon.duties

and non-refundable'puichase taxes, road taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly

attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of

dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and

dircct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended

use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is

located.

Ifsignificant parts ofan item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal ofan item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets. outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown

untler othei non-current assets. The cost of fixed assets not ready tbr its intended use at each balance

sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Bonowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of those fixed asses

that nece;sarily take a substantial period to get ready for their intended use, are capitalized. C)ther

borrowing costs are accounted €rs an expense in the statement ofprofit and loss'

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the f'uture economic benefits associated

with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual

vat'ues ou". thei. 
"stimated 

useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally recognized in the

profit or loss. Leasehold improvements are imortized over the useful lives of assets. Assets costing less

ihun nt. 5000 \- 
"uch 

are depreciated at the rate of 1000 in the year of purchase'

The estimated useful lives of items ofpropcrty' plant and equipment are as follows:

t0 10

IleYised LifcPrevious LifeClass of Assets
6060Building (Owned)
6060

5

5

5

5

55

Motor Cycles and Trucks

Office Equipment

Motor Cars

l5t5Plant and MachinerY
5

l0
5

0
Tools and Equipment

-Eia;trl-ca-Lnan-ss 

-Furniture and fittings

I
)

Computer equipment 3

I

Building (Leased)

A
ffimll^43w



-\pula! lrlega Motors (India) Private
LiEited Notes to the f,inancial
stateE€nts (contj'nued)

t For the above mentioned classes of assets. the Company believes that the useful lives as given above

best represent the useful lives of these assets based on intemal assessment and supported by technical

advice, where necessary, which is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule

Il ofthe Companies Act,20l3.

1.3.2 Intangible assets:

Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accunlulated amortir.ation and impairment. Intangible assets are

amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, contmencing

from the date the asset is available to the Compan) lbr its use and is included in amonization in prolit

or loss. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of Assets Years

J

5

Software

Goodrvill

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and

adjusted if appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only rvhen it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the

specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

1.3.3 Employec bcnefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within lwelve months of receiving employee services are classified as

short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term

employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related

servici is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term

cash bonui, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to Pay this amount as a result of

past service provided by the employee and the amount ofobligation can be estimated reliably.

P ost-employme nt be nefi ts

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a posl-employmenl benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed

Contributions into a separate entity and uill have no legal or consfuctive obligation to pay f'urther

amounts. The Company makes specifierJ monthly contibutions towards Government administered

provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined confibution plans are recognized as an

Lmployee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered

by employees.

prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future

payment is available.

The company is covered under the Group cratuit) Scheme ofl-ife Insurance corporation o1'India fbr

n i"r" p"y.J"o of Gratuity as derermined on actuarial basis by LIC of lndia. The contribution is debited

to gratuity Payable.
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DeJined beneJit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The

Company's net obiigation in respect ol defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of

future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount.

Other long term emPlo.Yee benefits

The company's net obliBation in respect ol long-tenn ernployee benefits other than post-employment

benefiS ii th" 
"rnount 

oi futut" benifit that employees have eamed in return for their service in the

cur€nt and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value' and the fair value of

,.y.af"rcO asses is Aeductea. The obligation is measured on the basis ofan annual independent actuarial

vaiuation using the projected unit crediimethod. Re-measurement gains or losses are recognized in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.

1.3.4 Provisions (other than for employee benelits)

A provision is recognized ii as a result ofa past event, the Company has a present legal-or constructive

"Uiig"ti", 
that canie estimated reliably, and it is probable.that an outflow of economic benefits will be

required to settle ttre obligation. Provisions are detirmined by discounting the expected. future cash flows

(rcpresenting trre best esti-mate of the expenditure required to setlle the present obligalion at lhe balance

itriet date; it a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the

iirG rp""in" to tf," tiubitity. The unwinding ol the discount is recognized as finance cost. ExPected

future operating losses are not provided for.

A contract is ionsidered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the

company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the

"onr!at.'ffr" 
provision for an onerous contract is nteasured at the present value of the lower of the

a-p"JaA 
""rt "f 

terminating the contracl and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.

BJfore su"h a provision is riade, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated

with that contract.

1.3.5 Revenue

Revenueonsaleofvehicles,sparepartsandaccessoriesisrecognizedwhentheriskandrewardsare
transfcrred to the customer and i; accounted net ofGST and trade discounts' ifany'

Revenue from services is recognized on rendering of services to customers'

commlsslonincomclsr€cognizcdwhcnscrviccaarercnderedandinaccordanccwiththecommission
agreements.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the

projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benelit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are

recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the nel interest expense on

the riet defined benefit liabiliry for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined

benefit obligation ar the begi;ning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking

into accouniany changes inlhe n& defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions

and benefit puyr"ntri Net interest expense and olher expenses related to defined benefit plans are

recognized in profit or loss.

Discounts and incentive income is recognized when lhe services are rendered and as per the relevant "
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scheme/ arrangement with the service receiver. Tradc discounts frorn principal/ manufacturer are also

grouped under discount/incenlives. In respect ofother lreads ofincome, the Company follows the practice

ofrecognizing income on an accrual basis.

Insurance claims accounted on accrual; accrual being reckoned based on part receipts towards claims and

provisional liability arrived at by surveyors.

The standard is effective from I April 2018. The effect of adoptiorr of lnd AS I 15 is expected to be

insignificant.

1.3.6 Inventories

Inventories are valued on the basis ofcost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Cost for this purpose is arrived at as follows:

a) Vehicles, on Specific identification Basis.

b) Spares and accessories at weighted average method.

c) Accessories on FIFO method

d) Batteries on FIFO method

e) Goods in Transit in respect of vehicles and spares are accounted in the books, upon billing and

dispatch of the same by the principal from their factory/ warehouse and are shown under the heads

inventories.

1.3,7 Fitrancial instru ments

i) Recognition and initial measuremcnt

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other

finsncial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a pany to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially rncasurcd at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value

through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii) Classilicrtion lnd subsequcnl nleasurcmcnl

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either at amortized cost, FVTPL or fair

value.in other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except ifand in the period the

Company changes its business model for managing tinancial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of lhe following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels to collect contractual cash

flows; and

- the contractual terms of the flnanclal asset give rlse on sPcclflcd datcs to cash flows that arc lololy

paymens ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition ofan equity investment that is rlot held for trading, the Company may irrevocably

q.
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elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity

investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured

at FWPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may

irrcvocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amonized

cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly teduces an accounting mismatch that

would otherwise arise.

Financial assels: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment ofthe objective olthe business model in which a financial assel is held

at investment level because this best retlects the way the business is managed and information is provided

to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies in

practice.

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that

business model) and how those risks are tnanaged;

- the frequency, volume and timing ofsales offinancial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales

and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers oftinancial assels to third parties in transactions that do not qualiff for de recognition are not

considered sales for this purpose, consistent wilh the Company's continuing recognition ofthe assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value

basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether cont'uctuul cush.flou,s are solely payments ofprincipal und inleresl

For the purposes ofthis assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value ofthe financial asset on initial

recognition. 'lnterest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk

associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic

lending risk and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments ofprincipal and interest, the Company

considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whelher the financial asset

contains a co ractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such thal i1

would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent evcnts that would change lhe amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- ierms that limit lhe Companl.'s claim 1o cash flows lrom specified assets (e.g. non-recourse f'ealures).

Financial assets: Subsequenl meaxtremcnt ond gains and losses

.I

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value' Net

including any interest or dividend income. are recogtlized in profit or loss

gains and losses,assets atFinancial

FVTPL
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Equity investments
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iv) Off setting

These assets are subsequently meas[red at amortized cost using the eflective

interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest

income, foreign exclrange gains and losses and impairment are recognized

in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or

loss.

These assets are subsequenlly measured at fair value. Dividends are

recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents

a recovery of part of the cost of the inveslment. Other net gains and losses

are recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: ClassiJication. suhsequenl cosurentent and gains and losse.s

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at arnortized cost or FVI'PL. A financial liability is classified

as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading. or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial

recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including

an) interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured

at amortized cost lsing the effective interest lnethod. lnterest expense and foreign exchange gains and

losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de recognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

iii) De recognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

financial asset expire, or it transfers thc rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a lransaction in

which substantially allofthe risks and rewards ofownership ofthe financial asset are transferred or in

which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control ofthe financial asset.

Ifthe Company enters into transactions uhereb\ it translers assets recognizcd on its balance sheet. but

retains either all or substantially all of the risks and relvards of the transferred assets, the transt'erred

assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged

or cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its ternrs are modified and the cash flows

under the modified terms are substantially dift'erent. ln this case, a new financial liability based on the

modified terms is recognized at fair value. The diftirence between the carrying amount of the

financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in

profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc o {'f!et and the net antount presented in the' balancc sheet

when, and only when, the Company cunently has a legally enfbrceable right to sel ofl'the ar)lounts and

it intcnds either to settle them on a ne( basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

v) Derivrtivefinancial instruments

Tho Company holdc derivative finoncial instrumenis to hedge its foreiSn currency and interest rale

risk exposures. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,

derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes thercin are gencrally recognized in profit or loss.

JI
2(
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1.J,8 Impairment

i) Imprirment of Iinancial instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assels measured at

amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit

impaired. A financial asset is 'crdit impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact

on the estimated future cash flows ofthe financial asset have occulred.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured al an amount equal to lifetime expected credit

losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default

events over the expected life ofa financial instrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum

conaactual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Meosutenrert of expectei creiil losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate ofcredit losses. Credit losses are measured as

the present value ofall cash shortfalts (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in

accordance with lhe contract and the cash llows that the Company expects to receive).

Presenlation ofa owtnce for expected credit losses in the balance slteel

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cosl are deducted from the gross carrying

amount ofthe assets.

llrite-olf

The gross carrying amount of a financial assel is written off(either partially or in full) to the extent that

there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that

the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the

amounts subject to the write off

ii) Impairment of non- Iinoncial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deflened tax assets, are reviewed at each

reporting date to determine whelher there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,

then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into

cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CCU represents the smallesl group of assets thal generates cash

inflows that are largely independent ofthc cash itlflows ofother assets or CGUs'

The recoverable amount of a CCU (or an individtral asset) is lhe higher of its value in use and its fail

value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market alisessments of the time value of

N
a. ,G

a
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money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carryirrg anrount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated

recoverable amount. lmpairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

In respect ofassets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company reviews

at each reporting date whether there is any indication thal the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An

impairment loss is reversed ifthere has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount. Such a reversal is made only 1o the extenl that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment

loss had been recognized

1,3.9 Leases

Ind AS I l6 has replaced existing leases standard with efJbct from 0I .04.201 9, Ind AS I 7 l,eases (lnd AS

l7) and sets out the principles lor the recognilion, rneasurement, presentation and disclosure of leases lbr

bolh lessees and lessors. It inlroduces a single. on-balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A

lessee recognizes present value oflhe lease payrnent (discounled using incremental bonowing rate) as right-

of-use asset represenling its right to r$e tlrc underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation

to make lease payments and lease rent expense will be replaced with the amortization of right-of use-asset

and interest accrued on lease liability. The standard aiso contains enhanced disclosure requirements for

lessees and rvill have consequential impact on cash flows categories as well. The new standard substantially

carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The Company has applied the provisions of this standard only in respect of those lease agreements other

than short term leases. Where the non-cancellable period in the lease agreements entered into by the

Company are for a period of less than one year, such leases fall within the meaning of short term lease as

per the standard and thus qualifies for exemption as per para 5 to 8 of Ind AS l16. Accordingly, this

standard is not applied for short tenn leases.

!.3.10 Recognition ofdividend income, interest inconre or interest expense

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the right to receive payment is

established.

Interest income other than received from banks and principals is recognized on effective interest rate basis

and Interest income fiom banks are based on statement received from banks. Inlerest income from

Principal is recognized based on the statements received from them.

The'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts

through the expected life ofthe financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or

the amortized cost ofthe financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense. the efFective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying

amount ofthe asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost ofthe liability.

i.J.l1 Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is rccognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it

relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

$
s
9:

9

'G. 
N.

tax palable or reccivable on the taxable income or loss tbr lhe year andCurrent tax comprises the expected
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1.3.12 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset rvhich necessarily take a

substantial period of time to get ready fol tlreir intcnded use are capitalized as part ol'the cost ofthat asset.

Other bonowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in rvhich they are incurred.

1.3,13 Earningdloss per sharc

The basic eamings/loss per share is cornputed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year

attributable to eqriity shareholders by the weighred average number ofequity shares outstanding during the

any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. Minimum Altemative Tax

('MAT') under the provisions ofthe lncome-tax Act, 196l is recognized as cunent tax in the profit or loss.

The amount ofcunent tax reflects the best cstimate ofthe tax amount expected to be paid or received affer

considering the uncertainty, ifany, relateti to income ta.\cs. It is mcasured using tax rates (and tax laws)

enacted or substantively enacted by the repofting date.

Cunent tax assets and current tax liabilities are ofilet only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts, and it is intended lo realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or

simultaneously.

ii.Deferrcd tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of lempomry differences between the carrying amounts ofassets and

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is also recognized in respecl ofcarried forward tax losses and tax credils.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be

available against which they can be used. The existence oi unused tax losses is strong evidence that fulure

taxable profit may not be available. Therelbre, in case ol a history of recent losses, the Company

recognizes a deferred ta)( asset only to the extent that it has suflicient taxable temporary differences or

there is convincing other evidence that sullcient taxable profit u'ill be available against which such

detbned tax asset can be realized. Del'erred tax assets - unrccognized or recognized, are revicwed at each

reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the eKtent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively

that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Defened tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized

or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date. The measurement ofdeferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in

which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or seltle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

Deferrcd tax assets and liabilities are ofl'set if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax

liabilities and assets, and they relate to inconre taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable

entity, or on different tax entities, but the) intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or

their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

year

The number of shares used in computirt6i dilr,rted earnings per share comprises the weighted average

numbcr ofsha.es considered for deriving t-rosi c conrings pcr share and also tlre weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued ott the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive

potenti al equity shares are deemed converted as ofthe beginning ofthe period unless issued at a later dale.

y potcntial ecluity shares that are di

G.N$

In compu ting dilutive eaming pcr share. orrl
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eamings per share or increases loss per sharc'are included.

1.3.14 Cash-flow statemcnt

Cash flows are reported using the indirect nrethod, rvhereb) net profit betbre tax is adjusted for the effecs
of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of lhe

Company are segregated.

1.3.15 Cosh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original

maturity ofthree months or less which are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges in value

t.f,.16 Prior Period Items

Expenses/income less than Rs. 10,00,000, if any, are not treated as prior period items as they are nol

material considering the scale of operations of tlre company. Further, expense / income relating to earlier

years which crystallised during the year are not treated as prior period items.
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(All amounts in tNR millions)

a) Title deeds of Immorable Properties not held in rame of the Comparl\:

Description As on 3l .03.2024 As on 31.03.2023

Title deeds held in the name of

NA NAWhether title deed holder is a promoter, director or relative of
promoter/director or employee of promoter/director

Reason for not being hcld in the name ofthe Company

b) CaDital work-in-orosress reDresents exoenditrre construction of new worksboDs/ service centres.

Capital work in progress Ageing Schedule

As at March 3 1. 2024

Description

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than I Year l-2 Years 2-3 Years ,

Projects in progess 8.08

Projects tempora ly suspended

As at March 31, 2023

Description

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 Year l -2 Years 2-3 Years
More Than 3

Years

Proj ects in pro$ess t.06

Proj ects temporarily suspended

G.ttR

isi

More Than 3

Years
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Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited

Notes to the financirl statements (continued)

(All amounts in NR millions)

3 lntangibles assets

Gross carrying value Software Goodwill TOTAI,

Balance at I April 2022 0.94 3.20 4.14

Additions r.53

Disposal 0.08 0.08

Balance at 3l March 2023 2.39 3.20 5.59

Ballnce at I April 2023 5.s9

Additions 0.39 0.39

Disposal

Balance at 3l March 2024 2.78 3.20 s.98

Accumulated amortisation

Balance at I April2022 066 3.20 3.86

Additions 0.51 0.51

Disposal 0.08 0.08

Balance at 3l \larch 2023 Ll0 3.20 .1.30

Balance at t April 2023 l0I 3.20 4.30

Additions 0.59 0.59

Disposal

Balance at 3l llarch 2024 1.69 3.20 .1.89

Carrying amounts (net)

.4t 3l March 2024 1.09 1.09

At 31 March 2023 1.29 1.29

I

6. iVs
-ct -

\
)
)

1.53

2.39 3.20

Z



Popular Mega Motors (Indie) Privflte Limited

Notos to the financiil statements (continued)

(All arnounts in INR millions)

4lnvestments

Noo-currcnt investments, unquoted

Inteslmenls in Equily sharcs al FyfPL

Loginomic Tcch Solutions Private Limited

9600 equity shsres ofRs.l0 each (9600 equity shares ol Rs.l0 each ) -

Acquircd by conversion ofpreference shares

Provision for Diminution in Value oflnvestments

lnveslment in subsidiaries

Vision Motors Private Limited -at cost

1,46,76,666 Equity shares ofRs. l0 each

( 1,46.76-666 Equity shares ofRs. l0each)

Non Curreot Invcstmcnts, Qooted

Iovesfiients in Quoted Equity Instruments (valued at FMV), fully paid up

Inv€stmont in Mutual Fund (valued at FMV)

5 Other Iinancial assets

Non-current

UnsecurE4 considered good

Rent ard other deposits

Currctrt

Uff€cued, considercd good

Guarantee Commisssion receivablc

Intercst reclivsble

6 Othcr rasets

Non-currena

Considered good -ansecured

Prepayments

Disputed t&\es

Balance with Statutory Authorities

Advanc€s for capital goods

Currcol

Coasldered good -a nseqred

Pr€payments

Advarce to staff

Paymcnt to v€ndors for supply of goods and services

Othcr Advanc€s

As at

.ll March 2024

As at

.ll March 202J

2.40

-2.40

2.40

-2.40

244.70 244.70

23.84

5l .35

t7.99

25.78

3t9.89 288.{7

'70.56 67.t8

70.56 67. r8

0.t2

0.90

0.29

0.53

t.02 0.82

9.13

2.27

48.93

0.17

I 1.05

5.85

7.03

5.2E

60.50 29,21

9.90

0.06

r80.78

36.43

6.48

0.8 t

53.90

28.09

R.G /{

227.t6 89.28



Popular Mega Motors (India) Priyate Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

7 Inventories

(Valued at lower ofcost and net realisable value)

New vehicles

Used Vehicles

Sparcs and Accessories

Less: Provision lbr obsolete stock

Slock in troasi,

Goods in Transit - Vehicle

Goods in TrarNit- Spare

8 Trrdc reccivrbles

Current

Considered good -Unsecured

Which have significant increase in Credit Risk

Credit impaired

Less: Allowance for exp€cted credit Loss

Others

Net trade receivables

Note - Refer Note No 36(a) for ageing analysis ofTrade Receivables

9 Cesh and cash equiyalents

Balance with baflks

- in cufient accounts

- in Cash Credit Accounts

Cash on hard

Cheques in Hand

Cash and cash equivalents in balance sheet

l0 Bank balances

Deposit with Maturity more than threc months (Gilen as securih tbr
Bank guarantee)

G//

381.27

0.09

t53.22

418.73

0.90

154.48

534.58

l.9i
574.11

6.7 5

532.67 567.36

464.'72

21.64

489.76

17.5t

1,019.03 1,07 4.63

6.04

20.11

20.1l

r,086.s7

s.42

21.47

21.47

964.0t

I,092.61

t 16.44

4.90

2.13

0.96

63.59

r.36

3.17

0.01

124.13 68. r3

9.48 4.78

9.48 4,78

,t )

'... '-,;

969.43

i\

\A



Pop.-'r ,O. ,o,o.t,lndi.) Privrte Limited

llote! ro the linsncl.l strtem.nts (continred)

(Allamounts excepr numberofsharcs and mre in INR:nillions)

lnrcstments in quoi€d Equit\ lnstrumen(s- $hnrged
br.' ASK lnreslment ManrE€rs Limited

As on 31.0.3.2024

B. CRO\I'TH F!' No. of units Rate Valu(

Au Srnall Financc Bank Lld l0 lJ5 565.55 0.05

Bajaj Finance l-rd 52 7,:40.35 0.38

Bajaj Finsen' Ltd I

Berger Painls India Ltd I

Slate Bank Of India 0 '1lt7 752.60 0.37

ICICI Bank Ltd 303 1,095.85 0.33

Divis t-aboratorics Ltd l5 3,436.t5 0.05

Dixon Technologies India Ud

Cujarat Gas trd 2

Havclls lndia Lld I

Hdlc Bank Lld I t13 I,,148.20 0.t5

lndian Oil Corporation Ltd l0 12l0 t6t.t5 0.37

Bharat Electronics Ltd I 1625 201 45

Navin Fuorine lnefnadonal l-td 62 3.r 12.00 0.19

Page lndustries Lld t0

KEI lndustrics Ltd llt) 1.455..10 0.28

Reliance lndustries Lld l0

PI lndustries Ld 0 1o 3.868.85 0.27

Syrrna SGS Technology trd t0 464.q0 0.t6
SRF Ltd l0

Titan Company trd I 66 1,804.75 0.25

Hindustan Aemnautics Ltd 5 ,12 3.327.25 0.21

REC Ltd l0 536 450 80 o.21

Varun Beveragcs Lld 5 25? 1.398 l0 0.36

Ramkishna Forgings Ltd 3l I 69r.05 0.2 r

Polycab lndia t-td 0 {,1 5.066.30 0.22

Ratflamani Mc(als & Tubes Lld 1o 2.788.60 0.?0

APL Apollo Tub!.s Ltd 2',73 1.495.20 0.4t

Solar lndustriG lndia tld 4',7 8.786.05 0.4t

JSW In frastruclurc Limited 0 q70 0.24

Avenue Supennans Ltd l0

Patanjali Foods Limited 2',70 1.335.85 0.36

lnfosys trd 0

Bhani Airtel LId 210 821.20 0.t 7

Ambuja Cemmts Ltd t9g 612.30 0.24

Bhani Airtel trd P P 5 t01 1.229.05 0. t3

lndusind Bank Ltd l0 l9q r.555.70 0.31

hrscn & Toubro Ltd-New I04 3.774.\)

Housing Developmenl Finance Corpomtion Lrtd

BHEL - Bharat Heary Electricals Ltd t0l I 0.25

Narayana llrudayalaya Ltd IO 116 1.280.25 0.23

Aani Pharmalahs l-imited 5

st B ToT..rL (B) 7.9-l

0cHltr - 26
2

As on I1.0-1.2024
Details of Non Current lnvestments- Quotcd

No. of units Rrle

A lntestments in quoted Equitl Instruments-

Managed b) Acumen Crpitsl Mrrket (lrdia) Limited

Cclln Space Lirnitd Eq Equily 391i4 8.40 0.33

Nippon lndia Mutual Fund Etf 0.826 t.000 00 0.00

suB ToTAL (A) 0.3-1

I
I

bount

$ G-N.

u,
q ao

!

0.33

245.50

0.39

1"4



As on 31.03.2024

C. INDIAN ENTREPRENEUR PORTFOLIO F\ No. of units Rate Value

Aarti l dustries Ltd

APL Apollo Tubes Ltd 2 294 1.195.10 0.44

Asian Paints Ltd I 12 2,8,{6.00 0.12

Astral Poly Technik Ltd I r30 1.990.4i 0.36

Au Small Finance Bank Ltd 10 i59 565.55 0.12

Bajaj Finance Ltd l 58 7 240-15 l]4)

Bajaj Finserv Lld l 29t) 1.641.65

Cholamandilan Invcsnncnt And Finance Co l 1t1 1.r56.60

Divis taboEtories Ltd 60 3,436.75 0.2t

TVS Motor Company Ltd I ]]8 2,151..15

Havells lrdia L.d 58 1.51,1.85 0.09

Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd 5

DR Reddys tabomtories LId 5 5:l 6.155.15 0.33

Interglobe Aviation IO 115 3,544.50 0.41

Indusind Bank Lld l0 t'72 1.555.70 0.2'7

P I Industries Lld 0 88 3,868.85 0.34

Page lndustries Ltd l0
JSW Infiastructure Limited 0 '708 245.50 0.t7

Reliance Industries Ltd It) t05 2,976.80 0.49

Tata Consultancy Scrvices Ltd I t0l 3,883.55 0.4n

Titan Company Lld I 67 3,804.75

Tonent Pharmaceuticals Ltd t57 2.601.15 0.41

KEI hrduslres Lld t-i 3,455.30 0.r2

Sona BLW Precision Forgings Ltd l0 411 705.55 0.3 r

Avenue Supermans Ltd lrl l6 4.529_35 0.16

Dixon Technologies lndia Ltd 2

Metropolis Healthcare Ltd 53 1,126.40 0.0!)

Palanjali Foods Limited 2 268 1,335.8s 0.36

BhaEIi Ai{el Lrd PP 227 82r.20 0.t9
Bharati Ai(el Lid 341 1,229.05 0.42

Sun Pharmaceutical lnduslrics Ltd I r32 1,620.50 0.2 r

Polycab Indil} Ltd t0 5l 5.066.30 0.26

Aani Pharnulabs Lirrited

SUB TOTAL CC)

As on 31.03.2024

D. EMERCINC OPPORTUNITIES PORTFOLIO Fv No. ofunits Ratc

REC Ltd I(-) 5.19 150.80 0.25

AFFLE india Ltd

APL Apolkr Tubcs Ltd :10 1.495.20 0.34

Astral Poly Technik Ltd I l.1l 1.990.45 0.28

Au Srnall Finance Bank Lld t0

Bajaj Finance Ltd .15 7.240.35 0.33

Baiaj Finsen Ltd I

Berger Paints lndia Ltd !

Dixon T!'.hnologrcs lndla Ltd

Rankrishna Forgings Lld 2 .10.{ 69r.05 0.28

Go Fashion India Ltd l0 157 1,202.10 0.r9

Syrma SGS Technology Ltd l0 .16,1.90 0.19.1tJ5

Sudarshan Chemicals lndustries Ltd 60q.65 0.17

P I lndustrils Ltd 1.868.85 0.29

Pagc Industries Ltd l0

Radico Khaitan Ltd 200 1.726.45

AMI Organics Lld t0 119 1.094.35

Sansem Engincering Lld l t.+l 1.021.90

Solar lnduslries Ltd ,11 8.786.05 0.37

TCI Express tld l 56 r.021.35 0.06

HBL Power Systems Ltd I 189 45.+.50

t,l12.00 0.20Navin Fluorine International Ltd 6l

Dalmia Bharat Ltd
-G 

N. p]\\.3310 6b s.n66y'r<Polvcah lndia t-td

s,/;r
a(
9(

u)1

0.48

0.48

0.28

1

0.2s

5

5

5

8.38

2.

285

0.15

0.t5

0.t5

0.18

.B



l 2t6 1.315.85 0.30P-'rjali Foods Limited

S!..d Blw Pre.ision Forgings Ltd l0 290 ?0J.55 0.20

lnfosys trd 0

Reliance lndustries Ltd l0

107 3.455.10 0.3 7

Bharri Ai(cl l-td PP I ?.1 82t.20 0.23

Bhani Aincl t-ld

Indian Oil Corporalion Ltd l0 t.11t 167.75 0.30

Bharat Dynamics Ltd l0 1.ll t.751..10 0.25

Mnnkind Phirmra LiInilcd I r02 0.23

Metro Brands Lrd lEl 1.149.70 0.21

Narayana Hflrdayalar" Lrd t0 lil 0.19

Poly Medicur€ Lrd I.588.80 0.01

Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd r53 859.20 0.13

Ceat Ltd I0 55 2,677.15 015
BHEL - Bharat Heary Electricals Ltd l 6-tl l1- l 016

Indusind Bank trd t0 2t7 t.555.70 034
SUB TOTAL (D) 1.20

-
-
-

'roTAL VALUE(A+B+C+D) 2-1.8,1

3 Details of lnvestEents in Mutual Futrd

The balilt.es beld in mutorl futrd rs on M.rch 3t,2024 rnd Mrrcb 31. 2023 is as followr

Particulars
r\s on -11.03.2024 ,ts on 31.03.2023

Units I rri(s

INF846K0l 164 Axis Blu!.chip Fund - Crowlh 107358.3 t 4 5.81 1.01,557.7E0 3.34

lNFl74K0l DS9 Kotak Emerging Equity FuM4ro*rh
(Regular Plar) 67678.861 6.92 64.723.384 3.98

INF2O4KO I HY3 NIPPON INDIA SMALL CAP FUND -

CROWTH PLAN - GROWTH OPTION 5r791.269 7.29 47.20t.E59 3.74

INF200K0l 180 SBI Mulual Fund 60018.9t7 4.7 6 60.0t 8.9 t 7 3.66

INF200K0l2:2 SBI Mutual Fund Magnum Multicap t8294.109
75 16.294.109 t.33

iNF200K0lT28 SBI Small Cap Fund Regular crou,th 5577.419 0.El 5.571 .419 0.60

INF277K0l45l TATA Mutual Fund t2t2l.7t7 3.62 t2.t2t.717 2.44

INFIOgKO IBL4 ICICI PRUDENTIAL BLUECHTP

FUND CROWTH I17t 0.894 3.03 2E,442.375 Ll0
TNF769KO IEY2 MIRAE ASSE"T MIDCAP FLND -
REGULAR PLAN GROWTH 99806.029 29E 89.853. r75 l.05

Baroda Business Cycle Fund -Reg { 99985.00t I .l: 99.985.00t 0.98

Baroda targc & Mid Cap Fund Reg-G 2986S.025 29,869.025 0.48

Baroda BNP Paribas Flcxr Cap Fund e98q 501 0.l4 9,9E9 501 0.l0
Fireside Venlures l?. r r 2.98

TOT.1t. 5t.35 :5.78

g

A 0a

a:

Pri

KEI lnduslrici Lld

0.7r



Popular Mega Motors (IDdia) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(Alt amounts in INR millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at

3l March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

ll Share capital

Authorised

Equity shares

Add: issued during the year

Amount
Number of

shar€s Amount

7,000,000 70.00 7,000,000 70.00

0.00

7,000,000 70.00

Issued, subscribed aDd paid-up

Equity shares

Add: issued during the year

6,943,963

6,943,963 69.11

a) Reconcilatiol ofshares outstandirg at rhe begitrdng and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares ofINR.l0 each fully paid-up

At the beginning ofthe year 6,943,963 69.44

Add: lssued during the year being fughts Issue

At the end of the year 6,943,963 69.14

69.44 6,943,963 69.44

6,943,963

6,943,963 69.44

6,943,963

b) Details ofShare holders holding more thsn
57o shares of the Company

Popular Vehicle and Services Limited

c) Shares held by promoters at the end ofthe year

l) Change in Promoters holding during

the year (7")

2) Details of Promoters shareholding

100% 6,943,962 t00%

As at March 31, 2023

No.ofShares 7o ofTotal Shares

As at March 31,2024

No.ofShares 9/o ofTotal Shares

0v"

6,943,962

NIL

Naveen Philip (held as nominee ofPopular

Vehicles and Services Limited)

Popular Vehicles and Servces Limited
6,943,962 100% 6,943,962 100%

'Iotal 6,943,963

d) Proposed Dividend

The Board of Directors ofthe Company at its meeting held on 15 May 2024 have recommended payment of final dividend of Rs. 0.95
per Equity Share of face value ofRs. l0 each for the financial year ended 3l March 2024 amounting to Rs. 6.60 million which is subject
to approval at the ensuing Annual General Meeting ofthe Company and hence is not recognised as a liability.

$I trce

cl

c,i !
2

o

ro

K(ABA

N-26

Number of

shares

70.00 7,000,000

69.44

69.44

0%

6,913,963

I



r\mount\ote
69.{J

69.4,1

69.1.1

Bilancc ss rt I April 2022

Changes in equity share capital during the year

As st 3l Mrrch 2023

Brlsnce ai st I April 2023

Changes in equity shaie capital during the year

Ai .t 3l M.rch 2024

1l

69..t1

SOCE

Strtemeot of Chrrges iD Equity

(AIl amounts in INR millions)

ut shsre cs tal

B Other equity

The description of nature aod purpose ofe3ch reserve wilhin equity is as follows:

I Securides Premium

Represelts premiurd arising out of issue of 12,34,638 equity shares of Rs l0/- each at a

premium ofRs 82/- during the FY 2018-19 8nd out of issue of 7,09,6t2 equiry shares of

Rs l0/- each et a premium ofRs 145/- duing the FY 2019-20

2. Cenerrl Rcserves

Represents amount transfened from Retained Eamings during earlier years

3, R€trined Esrnings

Represents accumulation of Retailed Eamings of earlier years

for and on behalfof the Board of Directors of
Popular o(ors (lndia) Private Limited

Naveen ilip
Manag Director

usan r!ncls

Director

DIN : 00018828DIN : 00018827

Suryr J.cob

Company Secretary

Jose Thomas

Prr(iculsrs

Reseries and surplus
Item! of other

Comprehensive Income Total other equity

attributable to

equity holders of the

CompanySecurities premium Ccncral reser!e
Retainrd

earnings

Reme!surement of net

dcrined benelit liability/
(sssef),net of tax

Balan.e ss rt lst April 2022 201.t4 1.09 9.11 {t60.5.t

Totel comprchensive inaome for the pariod

ended 3l Mrrch 2023

Profi/ ( Loss) for the year

Other compaehensive income, nel of tar

Regrouping ofOCI

I t1 .62 I t1 .62

( r.00)( 1.00)

Total compreh€nsive income 111.62 (r.00) I16.62

Balsn.e as st 3l March 2023 20,1.14 7.09 157.11 8.17 977.16

Balanc. as at I April 2023 20{.1{ 7.09 751.16 E.11 971.16

Totil comprehensive income for the period

cnded 3l Mrrch 2024

Pro6/ (Lnss) for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of lar(

l I3.10 I t3.30

1.481.,18

Total compr€hensive income I l -1.-i0 1..18 I14.7E

Bslsnce as at 31 March 2024 20.t.t1 7.09 t71.07 9.65 1.09 t.9{

Place : Kochi

Date :
Chief Executive Oflice

u

6{0.t5
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P lar Meg. Motors (Indir) Privrtc Limited

Notes to the llnancisl stitements (conflnued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

12 Borrordngs

Non{urrent

Securcd

Temr loars from bsnk

Vehicle loans from Financial Institutions

Unsecurcd

Intercorpomte tlans

Current

Secured

Shon term toan fiom balks

Cash credit.nd overdrah facilities from banks

Shon tefm loa.n from finrocial iEstitutioo

Curent Marurities of long tenn bonowings

Unsecuied

Shon te.m loan from financial institution

As at

3l March 2024

As at

.ll Mlrch 2023

15.36

E.l4r3.82

500.00

513.82 8.1.50

1,078.54

53.91

35.42

8.85

10.59

879.10

56.5t

247.t0

32.65

26.27

1,242.33

a) Overdraft facilities from banks carry intere$ ranging belween 7.J0o/o - 9.J07o computed on 5 mondrly basis on the actual arnount utilised

and are repayable on demand. These are secured by pari prssu charge by way ofh,,polhecalion ofstock aDd book debls .

b) Term loan fiom Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited is secured by fint charge on all existing and future current ass€sts / nrovable Fixed Asse6

of the company which are finarrced by the bank Collareral securiry by way of equitable mortgage of Immovable propenies of the

Kuttukkamn Trading Ventures, Kuttukkaran Homes LLP, Pe6onal Guamntee of lhe directors and promoter direclors of the holding

company. This loan was closed during the year.

c) Vehicle loans are secured by hnothecation of the Vehicle financed and pelsonal guarantee of the directoN of the company. The loan is

repayable in montNy installments rsnging frorn 4 to 32 installmenls from the date commercing from 01.04.2024

d) lnter Corpomte loan ftom holding company, Popular vehicles and Service Limited cani€s an iDterEst rate of 8.60% 8nd repayable within

5 yeaN.

e) Shon rerm loan from KoEl Maiindra Bank Limited is secured by first charge on all existing and fulure curml assests / movable Fixed

Assels of the company which are financed by the bank, Collateral security by way of equit ble mortgage of hunovable properties of the

Kuttukkaran Trading Ventures, Kuttukkamn Homes LLP, Personal Guarantee of the direcloN and promoter dircators of the holding

company.

f) Sho Term lran from Yes BaDk Limited is secured by lein of booked vehicle and pe$onal guarantee of directors of the company.

g) Shon term t.oan fiom lnduslnd Bank Limited is secured by way o[ hypoth€cation of vehicles financed by then\ receivables arising

therefmm, personal guarantee of direclors of lhe company and corpoBle guarantee of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited.

h) Shon term lratr frorn DBS Bank Limited is secured by Firsl charge by way of h)?othecalio[ of vehicles and receivables financed by

them and personal guaranlee of Dircctors.

t) Shon term toan from Axis Bank Limited is securcd by First charge by way of hypothecation of Current Assets finarced by them and

petsooal guamntee of directors.

j) Shon Tenn toan from State Bsnk of India is secured by finl charge by way of hypothecation of the stock and receivables of vehicles

financed by them including the advance remitlaDce lo Tata Molo6 Limited our of the funds released by lhern, personal guarantee of

direclors of the company and Paonotea directors of rhe holding company and Corporate guarartee of Poputar Vehicles and Services

Limit€d.

q
\?
€

c!

o
cI\\.

t.t E7.3 r



- rulsr Megs MotoE (lndi.) Priv.tc Llttdted

Not6 to thc financial strteltrenE (cordlued)

(All amouDls in INR millions)

k) Shon Term t ar from ICICI Bank Limited is secured by way of hlpolhecatior of stock ard receivables in respect of conunacial

vehicles financed by lhe bank, Corporate parantee of the holding company ard Personal guarantee ofdirector of the company.

l) Shon Tefm t an from Bank of Baroda is secured by way of hypothecation of stock and receivsbles in resp€ct of co[undcial vehicles

fin.nced by the bank, cheques of operative account and corporale guarantee of Popular Vehicles atd Services Limited.

m) Shon Term Iran from South lndian Bank Limited is secured by way ofhlpothecation ofstock and receivables in resp€ct ofcommercial

vehicles financed by lhe bank and Corpomte guamntee oflhe holding company .

n) Short Term I-oan from HDFC Bank Lirnited is secured by way of h),polhecation of stock and receivables in r€spect of commercial

vehicles financed by lhe banl , Personal guamntee ofdir€ctor ol the company 6nd Corpomte Suamntee of the holding company .

o) Shon Team lran fmm Karur vysya Bank Limited is secured by way of h),pothecation of stock in .especl of comtnercial vehicles

finarced by rhe bank and Corpoare guara ee of the holding company .

p) Short Tenn t an from Shrdard Ch8nered Bank is secured by way of hypothecation of stock and receivables in respect of conunercial

vehicles financed by the bank alld corporate guanntee ofPopular Vehicles and Services Limited 6nd personal guarantee of direclor of the

company

q) Shon Term loan from federal Bant Limited is secued by first charge by way of hypolh€cation of stock and receivabl€s of vehicles

financed by them including the advance remittance to Tata Motors ltd out ofthe funds released by them, peIsonal guarantee ofdirectoN

of the company and corpomte guanntee of Popular Vehicles and Sewices Limited

r) t a'l from TaIa Capital Linired and TATA Motors Finarce Limited is secured by first charge on present and futute stock financed by

them, the p€rsonal guarantee of the DirectoE of the company and Corpomte guarantee ofthe holding company.

s) The Unsecured Trade advances from NBFCS are guaranteed by the personal guaranteg ofthe Directors.

t) Em6gency Credit Lioe t a6 Availed:

I ) Srare Bank Of lndis

The facility ranks with second charge on the stock financed and receivables of the company including the advance aemittances made lo

Tata Motorc Limited out of funds relersed from e-DFS limit . l00o/o guarantee covemge from National Credil Cuarantee Trustee

Compary Ltd (NCGTC) on lhe outstanding amount for rhe crcdil facility provided und€r the scheme PriDcipal moratorium of | 2 months

and principal repayme of Rs.3,91,666/- fo.47 monthi and final installrnent of Rs.3,91,698/-. lnterest rate of 6 montbs MCLR +100

bps, effective mre being 7.95%.This loan was closed during the year.

2) Axis Bank trd
The facility is securEd by extension ofcharge on pimary securities available for existhg facilities on a second ratrking basis. 100%

guamntee coverage f.om National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Lrd (NCGTC) on the oulstanding amount for the credit facility

provided under the scheme Principal to be repaid in 36 equal monthly prbcipal instalfienls posl moralorium period of 12 months liom

lhe date ofdisbursernent (35 instalmenE @ Rs 2,91,667/- and final one month @8.s 2,91,6551). The interest on lo.n is 3M MCLR+1.5%

, payable at monthly i[tervals.

This loatl was closed during the year.

3 )Bank Of Baroda

The facilily ranks wirh firsr chrrge on assets financed under the scheme, second charge *ith existing credit facilities in terms of

cashflows(including repayme s ) and security. 1007o guarantee covemge from Natiooal Crcdit Guarante€ Trustee Company lxi
(NCGTC) on the oulstanding amount for the credit facility pmvided under tlte schefte . Repayment iD 48 rnonthly inslalhnenls of Rs-3,

12,0001 commencing 12 months after dare of fitsl disbusemml. Interest is payable dilring the moraroriur period. Applicable mte as per

scheme: BRLLR, Iolo p.a *ith mon$ly resE.

This loan was closed during the year.

4)Koak Mahinda Bank Limited

Tte facility ranks with lirsr charge on assets financed under the scheme, second charge wilh existing credit facilities in terms of
cashflows(including repa),rn6lls ) and security. l00o/o guarante€ coveftBe from National Credit Guarantee Truste€ Company Ltd

(NCGTC) on the oublanding amount for rhe crcdil faciliry provided uDder lhe scheme. Repayment in 4E monthly inslallments of
Rs.3,02, | 00/- commencing 12 aronths after date of firsl disbursement. Interest is paysble during lhe moratorium period. Applicable rate

as per scheme: MCLR+I % p.a with monthly rests.This loan was closed during the year.

. pri
$$
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I ulrr Mega Motors (lndia) Privrtc Limited

Notes to the finsnciil statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR ,nillions)

13 Other flnanci.l liabilties

Curr€nt

Interesl accrued but not due on borrowings

Corporale Guarantee Commission payable

l,l kovision3

Nor{urrent
Provbion lot efiployee beneJits

Net defined benefit liability - Cratuity

Comp€asated ab6ences

Curra[t

Provision lor employee benefus

Compensaled absences

15 Odrcr li.blllde3

Corratra

CSR Uability

CoDtract liabilities

Advance from verdors for rebates

VAT on warranty

Statulory du€s payables

lrovisior for irter€st on MSME dues

Other liabilities

As rt
3l March 2024 3l March 2023

0.07

t.94

0.08

3.20

3.2E 2.0t

4.30

8.12

0.14

8.29

12.12 9.03

2.30 2.ll
2.30 2.33

r 37.84

t.46

2l1.36

5.67

3E.90

25.7533.54

0.05

32.12 21.37

204.15 I10.51

The conract liabilities primarily relate to the advance received from the customeN for the sale ofvehicles. This willbe recognised as

revenue as and when the Company meet the performance obligalion by delivering the vehicl€s.

16 Trxde p.y.bleg

Oulstanding dues to Micro, Small aod Medium Enterprises 15.14

90.01

9.59

t31.67Otrlitanding dues ofcrediton other than Micro, Sm6ll and

Medium Enterprises

105.15 t.t t.26

Note - Refer Nole No 36(b) for ageing analysis ofTrade Receilables

All tladc pryrbles are'current'.

Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small aod Medium Enlerprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act") based on the informatron

available with the Company are given below:

The principsl amounl rernaining unpaid lo any supplier as al 15.14 9.59

the end of the year

The interesl due on the principal remaining outslanding as ar 0.05

lhe md of the year

The amounl of interest psid under lhe Act, along with the

amounts of lhe paymml made beyond the appoinled day during

the year

The amounl of inlerest due and payable for the period of delay

in maldng paymenl (which have been paid but beyond the

appoin€d day during the year) bul \trithout adding the inrerest

specified under the Act

Tbe amounl of inleaest accrued and remaining unpsid at the

end of the year

The amounl of fu(her interest remaining due and payable even

in the succeeding years, until such date when the inlerest dues

as atrove are actuaUy paid to the small enterprise, for the

pueose of disallowarrce as a deductible expenditure under the I,.I

0.05



Popular Mega Motors (lndir) Pritste Limited

Notes to the linancial statemetrts (continrcd)

(All amounts in Indian rupees million)

12 Borrowings (continued.,.)

A StatemeDt of details of curreDt tdd ,on{urent borrowiDgs.

Nrture ofborro*itrg As .t
3i Mrrch 2024

As at
3l Mrrch 2021

Non-currenL secured

Term loans fiom banks 96.84

Vehicle loans from financial institutions 22.67 19.31

Non Current, Unsecured

Intercorparate Loan 500.00

CurreDt secured

Cash credit and overdrafl facilities from

banks

5 3.91 56.51

Shoft term loan fiom banks t.078.54 879.10

Short term loan from financial institutions 15.42 247.80

Current unsecured

Short term loans from financial institutions 10.59 26.21

TOTAL r-701.13 l.-12S.ti-l

For Seadry Erms of the at ove borrottings, please refer Note l 2

The balance includes caftent malurities of long lenn ttorrowings

The borrowingsJrom banl6 /financial institutions carry interest rates.lion 8.596 b 9.80 Wr annufi

Ronowinglacililies anl liling ofqururlt rutu s with thc ban*e$

Ar rt 3l Mrrch 2024

Thc company has avail€d working capiral faciliries from banks on fte basis ofsecurity ofcureor asseb and have

submitted moothly relums ofcurreo! assets and curretrt liabililies lo lhe bankers. The quanerly retums are malching

wilh the books ofaccounrs

Ar rr3l Mrrcb 2023

The company has availed working capitsl fscilities from banks on the basis of s€curity ofcurenl assets and have

submitted moDthly r€tums ofcurrcnl asscts and cuftent liabilities to the bankers. The quanerly retums are matching

with the books ofaccounts

€

)
)
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Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited

Notcs to the finoDclal strtements (continued)

(All amounts in lndian rupoeri million)

l? Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS I 16 'Leases' with the date of initial application being April 1,2018 for the limited

purpose ofcompilation ofrestated financial statements. Ind AS replaces lnd AS l9 - Leases and related

interpretation and guidance. The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified restrospective approach,

under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognised in the retained earnings at April I , 201E.

Followin are the chan in the value of ri t of use assets

The aggregate depr€ciation expens€ on ROU asset is included under depreciation and amonisation expense in the

Statement ofProfit and Loss

The followin is the of current and non-curent lease liabilities

The foll is the movement in lease liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31,2024 on an

undiscounted basis.

Particulars

As at

31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Less than one year

One to five years

More than five years

Total

91.32

334.38

96.96

E9.'74

361.61

t34.02

522.66 585.37

rIlC
s'. f

o

As a(

31.03.2023Particulars

As at

31.03.2024

306.51

37.88

10.33

62.02

270.57

98.58

1. 14

61.50

272.04 306.51

Openiag balance

Add: Additions

Less; Reversal of ROU ass€t due lo cancellation of lease agreen

Less: Depreciation

Closing Balence

Particulars

As at

3t.03.2024 As at 31.03.2021

59.53 54.99

359.70

382;71 4t4.69

Current lease liabilities

Non-current lease liabilities

Total

As at 31.03.2023Particulars

As at

31.03.2024

Opening Balance

Add:Additions

Add: Finance Cost accrued during the period as per IND AS I 1

4t4.69

37.89

36.18

95.53

11.06

374.20

98.58

36.85

93.31

1.63

382.',|'7 .l1.1.69

Less: Lease liability for the period as per rent agr€ement

Less: Reversal of liability due to cancellation oflease agreeme!

Closing Bahtrce



Popular Megs Motors (lndia) Privrte Limited

Notes to the ,insncill strtements (co[tinued)

(All aL .nts in INR millions)

18 Revenue from operrtions

Sale of products

Sales of New Vehicles

Sales Spares And Accessories

Sales of used Vehicles

Other op€rating reveoues

lncorne from schemes and inc€ntiveri

Finance and insurance commission

l,abour income

year ended

-11 March 2024

year ended

3l Msrch 2023

10,674.09

1,217 .69

186.08

12,t99.53

t,t07.72

lEl.73

553.87

59.6 t

401.62

583.6 r

20. t3

356.82

Reconcili.tior of reveDue fron sde of products rnd services

Grms revenue

l.ess: Dscotrnt allowed

13,092.96 1,t.449.54

14,999.22

1,153.42

13,368.96

889.48

12,479.4E 13.E45.80

(A) Disrggregate of revenue informstion

The table below presents disaggregated rcvenue iiom contracts with customers for the below years ended by offerings and

contract t)?e. The Group belive that this disaggregation best dcpicts how the nature,amount,timing and unceflainity of our

revenues and cash flows are effected by industry,market and other economic factors

year eoded

3l Mrrch 2024

yesr ended

3l Msrch 2024

Revenue by nature

Commercial vehicles

Others

t2,479.48

613.48

t3,092.96 t4.449.54

Revenue by contract type

Fixed Price t3,092.96 14,449.54

13.092.96 1.1..119.5.1

(B)Contract blhnces

The following table provides inform.tio! about trade receivables and contract liabilities from contrrct wlth customers.

t3.845.80

603.'.74

Particulars Year Ended Yesr Ended

.11 Mrrch 2024 3l March 2023

969.43

2l t.36

Trade receivables

Contract liabililies

I,092.61

137.84

( C) Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligation

The following Eble includes revenue expected to be recognised in the futurc .elated to perfonnarrce obligations thal atE ursatisfied (or

partially satisfied) at the reponing date.

Prrticulars Yerr Ended Yetr Etrdcd

3l March 2024 3l Mrrch 2023

Within I year

l-3 year

Morethan 3 years

Cloring balatrce

137.84

2l t.36

2 .36

137.8,1

{v\
,i

C)+

aI

P\\.

Particulars



Popul.r Megr Motorc (hdir) Privrte Limited

Notcs to the fimtrclrl strtemetrts (cootlnued)

(AIl an ,1ts in INR millions)

19 Other lncome

Interest Income -Others

Interest lncome on Rent Deposits (Notional)

lnterest lncome on Bank deposits

Provision for doubtful debts written back

Interest on income tax rcfund

L,ease Liabilty Written Back

l.ease Rent Coocession

Net change in fair value offinancial asset

Credit balances written back

Gain on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment

Gain on sale of investment (neO

Miscellaneous incorne

Liability balances wrinen backr

Commission on Inter corporate Guarantee

Dividend Incorne

20 Purchases of stock-in-trade

New Vehicles

Used Vehicles

Spare And Accessories

2l Change in invetrtories of stock-in-trade

Opening stock

Closing stock

22 Employee betretit$ expctrse

Salaries and allowances

Remuneration to Director

Contribution to povident and other funds

Gratuity

Staffrecruitment

Staffwelfare expense

23 Finuce coat

Interest on bank bcrrowings

Interest on lnter Corporate [,oan

Commission on Inter ccporate Guarantee

Interest on lrase Liability

Interest on MSME c-reditors

Interest on shortfall of ofadvance tax

Interest expense- Others

24 Deprecistion End &mortisstion expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortisation on intangible assets

Amonisation on Right ofUse ( ROU) Asset

56"1.36

532.6'l

395.89

567.36

2.20

2.57

0.42

1.36

0.97

0.'73

16.41

17.89

9.'78

3.59

16.02

38.90

0.71

0. r3

1.63

2.24

0.30

0. r9

0.48

1.93

I 1.00

4.48

0.64

9.08

0.53

0. r8

1n.68 32.6t

* Li.biliry b.Loc6 fo. rhc Fiod rwtsarr R5.lE.9o nillioo (I!.NIL) bcirg reidu.r.nEl fioln eri*ipl. t t tuo"o:Uoi"d ,o*"r* KveT Fid ffi
{,alatlty chlscs ir .sli6 }Es coff.qr.r lo d.cisior of SuprlrE Colm on Enbility of i,Titrty ch&ges undd KVAT 4ufttions.

10,6t2.20

185. l5

1.06t.04

12,2t4.9t

177.18

989.44

11,858.-19 13,381.53

-14.69 (t1t.47)

507.83

9.66

35.11

10.64

4.09

25.4'7

469.60

n.78

34.76

9.01

4.61

27.81

59-1..10 557.57

9'1.21

l.4l

8.9r

36.79

0.05

0.03

7.63

36.84

88.2 |

0.03

l{1.t l

105.72

40.58

0.5s

64.55

2',7.M

0.5 t

63.99

t.12.71

@

W
co

?

q
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Popuhr Megr Motors (lDdtr) Prlvrte Limlted

Note3 to the fitrrocirl strtements (cortltrued)

(All ar'\nts in INR millions)

25 Other expersca

Transponation charges

Rent

Advertising and prornotional

Consumables

Power, water and fuel

RepaiN and maintenance - olhers

Wok Charges

Pre delivery inspection charges

Insurance

Communication

Printing & Statiorery

Rat€s and taxes

kgal, professional and other coflsultancy

Travelling and colvelance

Housekeeping and security

Provision for Doubtful d€bts

Corpcate Social R€sponsiblity

General Expenses

Bad debts wrinen off

Bank Charges

Net change in fair lalue offinancial asset

22.78

36.52

25.45

't4.69

I1.05

25.20

43.20

37.30

8.89

15.13

5.18

2.86

t0.02

29.96

28.36

3.0'7

3.85

0.46

2.28

24.13

22.95

31.07

t5.87

t0.21

28.12

31.72

39.60

t0.04

t5.60

6.72

4.47

9.24

27.87

26.00

3. l6

1.88

3.61

4.08

t.88

3.89

326.25

TO

331,31

o

T

o.

TTASI AKKABA

COCHIN.26



lopurr M€ge Motor. (lndir) Priv.te Limit€d

Notes to the rinrtrcial strt.ments (condnocd)

{All amomts in INR millions, wherE otherwise stated)

26 Year Ended

3l M.rch 2024

Yesr Ended

3l Mrrch 2023

B Deferr€d trx r3s.lr(li.bilitics)

Deferred income tox asi€ii

Tade receivables

Provision for gratuity

Other items mder lncome lax Act

Impact of IrdAS I I 6

Totrl defcred haoma trr r$.tr
Dcferrcd hcom. tal li.blliti..

Property, plaflt and equiprnent and computer softwarc

Pmvision for gratuity

Totj defcr.ed rncam. trr lirbllities

Dcf.rrd income t r .!ret .fter s.t off (Rcf.r Note bdo*)

lncome tex rssetd(lirbility)

Cufimt income tar liabilities

N€t inclmc t t rr$etd(lirbility) rt lhe.nd

In(omc trx eryctr.c / ( bctrEfits )

Currmt tax

Deferred tar

lnclme tix €xpcnse

Profit beforE tar

lncome tar expense

- Curent Tar

- DefenedTax

Proft after tax

14.85 10.q4

l{.t5 10.9{

5.06

1.08

0.06

27.t7

5.40

0.19

21.23

34.01

I l.l0

32.82

8.48

It.t0 8.48

:r.l{22.91

Defened tar asse6 and deferrcd tar liabilities have b€en offset wharvcr $e managemenl has a legally enfo.reable right to s€l offcurretrl tax

sssets against curent tax liabilities and *here the deGr€d tax essels and deli'rrcd tax liabilities relate to incoore taxes levied by lhe same

taxaliotr aulhority.

ln assessing the realizability ofdefened tar assets, lhe Danagemenl considers the extent to which, it is pmbable that the dele'red tax assel will be

rcalized. The ultil1late r€alizatiotr ofdefened tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future tarable profts dudng the periods it which

those tenryorary differEnces and tar loss c{rry-foNards becorne dedErible. Defu tar asset in respect of uused ox have nol beetr recognized

on accoutrt ofhistorical losses md unfavour.ble cashflo* for a prolonged period by ihe Company.

Yesr fnded

3l Mrrch 2024

Yerr f,nded

3l March 202-l

27.6t

(0.8?)

37.44

(3.99)

26.t4 3l.,ll

Income tax expense ,br lllc year reconciled lo th€ accounting profit

t41.78

:7.61

t59 0:

(0.E 7)

37.41

(3.99)

I ll.l0 1t7.62

Income tax rate on Dortrul incom

lncome tax expense

Admi$lible expens€s

Imdmissible txFnses

lnd AS Adjusmnts

Shon Tcm Capilal Grin

Lotrg T6n Capital Cain

Reversal ofexccss provision r[ade in previous ]€ars

TOJJAA I Additional ErploFe Cost (AtrDcxurE lll)
Provision for H€ath & Education Cess made during crfi€ot year

Adjus&rc for Provision ofPrcvious Years

lncome tax expensc rtcognised ir pmfit or loss

25.1680/o

35.6t

( 15.97)

t4.14

(3.50)

0.03

0.29

12.18t

(0.2?)

25.168Vo

,{0.02

(15.49)

I t.59

l.?0

0.03

(r.00)

055

4(j
P

ar?

\\' Ce

27.6t 17.11

ll



Movement in lemDorary differences

As at

3l March 2024 Expiry date

As at

3l March

2023
f,xpiry date

Long tenn capital loss - allowed to carry forward for specific

period AY 2l-22
0.78 AY 2030-3 t

t(ice 4 cr.\
(]

Movement during the yesr ended -11 March 2024
As at

I April 2023

Recogonised

through

retaired

eartring

Charge/

(credit) in the

statement of
profit ard

loss

Charge/
(credit) in

other

comprehensive

income

As !t
3l Msrch

2024

Allowarce for expected credit loss

Provision for ernployee benefits

Other timing differences

Lease liabilities,impact on account oflnd AS 116

Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment

under lncome Tax Act, 1961 over depreciation under

Conpanies Act,2013

5.40

0.19

21.23

(8.48)

(0.34)

1.39

0.06

0.64

12.62)

(0.50)

5.06

1.08

0.06

21.8'1

( r r.l0)

Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) at the end ofthe period 21.34 (0.87) (0.s0)

Movement during the !ear end€d 3l March 2023
As at

I April 2022

Charge/

(credit) in the

Ststement of
profit and

loss

Charge/

(credit) in
other

comprehensive

income

As !t
-31 March

2023

Allowance for exp€cted credit loss

Provision for onployee benefits

Other timing differences

Le€se Iiabilities,impact on account oflnd AS I l6

Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment

under Income Tax Act, 1961 over depreciation under

Cornpanies Act,20l3

4.60

1.32

0.0r

26.08

(4.02)

0.80

( 1.47)

(0.01)

t.15

(4.46)

0.34

27.23

(8.48)

\et deferred tax asset/ (liability) at rhe end of the year 27.99 (3.9e) 0.-11 24.34

c),.

rll

Popular Mega Motors (l[dir) Private Limited

Notes to the fiItanciel statements (continued)

(All amounts in Indian rupees million)

26 Taxes (continued)

B Deferred tax asset/ (liabilities) (contitrued)

Recognised deferred tax essets and (liabilities)

Tax losses carried forrard

Recogonised

through

retained

earning

5.40

0. t9

Particulars

'-::1,,

=4."



Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

27C liabilities and commitments

The company has participated in the Fireside Ventures lnvestment Fund as per which the aggregate contribution to the

fund committed is INR Forty Five Millions. The Contribution made accordingly during the reporting period amounts to

Rs.l3.5 million (Rs. 4.5 million ) and is classified under investments in the financial statements. Thsreafter, the

remaining Capital Commitments shall be drawn down as and when required by the Investment Manager.

The Uncalled Capital Commitment of Rs 31.50 million is shorvn below

Particulars
As at

3l March 2024

As at

3l March 2023

Capital Commitmenr
45.00 45.00

Amount paid till date
13.50 4.50

Uncalled Capital Commitrnent 31.50 40.50

Particulars
As at

3l March 2024

As at

3l March 2023

Contingent liabilities

Central Excise 3.03 3.03

KVAT 14.07 14.07

Income tax 0.88 13.51

Guarantee issued by bank on behalfof the company for which counter guarantee

has been issued by the company
18.58

Corporate guarantees
7 60.60 760.60

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net

ofadvances) and not provided for. 1.30 5.05

C
4

(a/
i, ri\\

Aic

o
)
)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts :



A. Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation ofprofirloss attributable to equity share holden and weighted average number ofequity shares

outstanding for the purpose ofbasic eamings per share calculaitons are as follows:

i) Net p loss share holders (basic)

B. Diluted earnings(loss) per share

The calculation ofprofirloss attributable to equity share holden and weighted avemge number ofequity shares

outsranding, after adjustment for the effects ofall dilutive potential equity shares is as follows:

i) \ct rofiu(loss) attributable to equity share holders (diluted)

ii) Weighted average number of equity shar€s (diluted)

29 Auditors' remuneration (included under legal and professional charges, net ofservice tax)

Particulars
As st

3l March 2024

As at

3l March 2023

Statutory audit 0.69 0.60

Other matters 0.04 0.00

0.73 0.60

As at

3l March 2024

As at

3l March 2023
Particulars

114.78 116.62

Particulars
As at

3l Msrch 2024

,{s at

3l March 2023

Opening balance (Refer note I l) 69.43,963 69,43,963

Effect of fresh issue ofsharss

Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each for the year 69,43,963 69.43.963

Eamings / (loss) per share, basic (Amount in INR) 16.53 16.79

Particulars
As et

3l March 2024

As at

3l Merch 2023

I 14.78 I16.62Net profit/(loss) for the year. attributable to the equity share holders

I16.62Net loss for the year, attributable to the equity share holders I14.78

Particulars
As at

3l March 2024

As at

3l March 2023

Weighted average number of equity shares of INR l0 each for the year (basic) 69,43,963 69.43,963

Effect of fresh issue ofshares

Weighted average number ofequity shares of INR l0 each for the year (diluted) 69.43,963 69,43.963

Eamings / (loss) per share, diluted ( Amount in Rs.) 16.53

Acc

q

Pri

(

Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

28 Earnings/(loss) per share

attributable to

(Loss)/profit for the year, attributable to the equity share holdem

ii) Weighted average number of equity shares (basic)

t6.79
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Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited
Notes to the linancial statements (continued)

(AIl ar-.rnts in INR in millions)

30 Financial Instruments- Feir values aDd risk management (continued)

B Firancial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety offinancial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a finarcial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The
credit risk arises principally Iiom its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and fiom its investing activities, including dErosits with banks and
financial insttutions and other financial instruments.

Crcdit risk is controlled by anaiysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has b€en granted after obtaining
necessary apprcvals for credit. The collection fiom the tmde receivables fie monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables was as follows

Particulars
As at

3l March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

Trade receivables t,lL2.7l 990.89

t,tt2.7t 990.89

Particulars
As at

ll March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

r.090.96

14.95

t.22

5.59

9',74.84

7.00

t.94

'7.1t

l,tt2,7l 990.89

The movernent in allowance for credit loss in respect ofhade and other receivables during the year was as follows
Allowance for credit loss As at

3l March 2024

As at

3l March 2023

Balance at the beginning

Provision created during the year

Impairment loss recognised/ (reversed)

21.47

(1.36)

18.31

1.16

Balancc at the end 20.t1 21.17

No single customer accounted for more than I 0olo of the revenue. There is no significant concenfi-ation of credit risk.
Crqiit risk on cash and cash cquivalent and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financiai institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by domsstic credit rating agencies.

Risk matragement framework

The Company's board of directors ('the Board') has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of th€ risk managernent ftainework. They
dversee how managemsnt monitors compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and .eviews the adeluacy of the risk managernent
fiamework in relation to the risks faced by Ole Company. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by intemal audit. tntfirai audit undertakes both iegular
and ad hoc reviews ofrisk management controls and procedures, the results ofwhich are reported to the Board.

tri

dXct

t

ii)

Imp&irment analysis

The ageing oftrade receivables is as follows:

ffi
\Qlo--q:,



Populrr MGg. Motors (Itrdia) Prlvrte Llmltcd

Noter to the llosrlcirl strtemenb (cotrdnued)

(All ar'-.rnts in It,lR in millions)

iii) Lrquldlty rlsk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will €icounter difliculty in meeting the obligations associated with its Enarcial liabiliti€s rhat are settled by
deliveting cash or another Gnancial asset. The Companys apFoach to managing liquidity i! to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both nomal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the

Company's reputation. The Company b€lieves that the working capital is sufficient to m€et its currer requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is
pfrceived.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contracual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 3l March 2024:

Particulsrs Payrble within I
year

More than I year Total

Trade payabl€s

Boftowings #

Lease liabilities

Other fi nancial liabilities

104.57

I,187.3t

59.53

1.28

0.58

513.82

323.24

105.15

1,70t. t 3

3.28

The table belo* provides details regarding the undiscounted conFactual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 3l March

2023

Particulars Payable within I
year

\Iore than I \ear Total

Trade payables

BoIrowings #

L€ase liabilities

Other linancial liabilities

t41.03

I,242.31

54.99

2.01

0.23

83.50

359.70

t4t.26

r,325.83

4t4.69

2.Ot

l0
iv)

# Represents borrowings (shon tefm and long teim) and current maturities of long term borrowings included in other current

Fltrsmlrl lo6truments- F.lr vrluer .rd risk mrtragement (contiDued)

M.rket rllk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a tlnancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in ma*et prices, such as foreign

exchange rates. inleresl rates and equity prices.

Forelgn curretrcy risk

The Compaoy is exposed to curr€ncy risk to the extent that tlere is a mismatch betw€en the cuEenci€s in which b:ansactions ar€ denominated atd the

functional currency of the Company. The functional curreicy of the Company is INR and the Company does not haye any material forsigr cu,tercy

transactions during lhe y€ars efldod 3l March 2023 and 3 I March 2022

C$h flow snd frir vrlue ltrt re3t

rrte rkk
The Company's main interest rate risk aris€s fiom long-tfin and shon-term borrowings with variable rates, which expnse the Company to cash flow
inter€st r.te risk. The intcf,esl rate on the Company's financial instrume.nts is based on mark€t rates. The Company monitoE the movement in interest rates

on an ongoing basis.

(r) ltrteresa r.te risk expGure

The exposure of the Compan/s borrowing to interest raae changes at the end ofthe year are as follows:

Financial liabilities (bank borro$ ing! As at

,11 March 2024

As at

3l Mlrch 2023

Variable rate long term borrowings 96.8,t

Sensitivitr

Particulars Impact on profit or (loss) lmpact on other componedts ofequity

As rt
3l March 2024

As rt
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 202,1

As at

3l March 2023

lyo incr€ase in va.iable rate

I 7o decrease in variable rate

-0.97

0.91

ci
o
\e

,,.,

The interest rate ssnsitivit) is basod on the closing balance ofvariable mte borrowings liom banks and financial institutions.

-=.--/



Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited

lr{rlcs to the financial statements (continued)

(..!-. amounts in INR nlillions)

31 Employee benefits

A Defired coltribution plan

Tte company make6 contributions, determined specified percentage of employees salades,in respect of qualiling employees

towards provident fund and other funds which are defined contribution plans.The company has no obligation other than to make

specified contributions.The contributions are charged to the staternent ofprcfit and loss as they accrue.

B Delined Benelit Plan

The company operates certain post-employment defined benefit plan which is Fovided for based on actuarial valuation carried

out by an indep€ndent actuary using the projected unit credit method.The company accrues gratuity as per the provisions ofthe
Payment of Gratuity Act,1972('Gratuity AcI). Based on an actuarial valuation obtained in this respect lollowing table sets out the

status ofthe benefit plan and the amounts recognised in dre company's standalone financial staternents as at balance sheet date.

Reconciliation of the projected DeJined benefit plon

Prrticul&rs

Defined Benefit Plan

Plan Assets

Net Defitred betrefit lirbility(Asseo

Liability for comperNal€d absences

Total employee betrelit lsibility

Non-current defi ned benefi t liability

Current defined benefit liability

Other curent assetdBalance with Life Insurance Corporation -Gratuity Fund (Net))

As at 3lst
M.rch 2024

70.03

65.73

4J0

t0.42

14.72

12.42

2.30

As at 31st

March 2023

66.47

65.05

1.42

10.62

12,M

9.7 |

2.33

C Reconciliction of net defined benefit (&ssets)/liability

i)Reconci liation of present values of deJined benertt ob ligation

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit

(asset)/Liability and its components

ii) Reconcilidlion ofprcsent vahrc ofplan assets

Pri

Particulars
As at 3lst

March 2024

As at 3lst
March 2023

Delincd betrelit obligrtiotr &s at the begi[tring of the year

Curent s€rvice cost

Past seryice cost

Interest cost

Benefis paid

Re.measuremetrts

Actuarial Gain(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income

-charges in financial assumptions

-changes in dernographic assumptions

-changes in experienc€ over the past period

66.41

10.64

57.91

9.01

3.39

(5.68)

(3. r l) 0.64

0.81 | .20

Defined benelit obligation as at the end of the tear 70.03 66.41

Particulars As at 3l st

March 2024

Year ended

3l March 2023

PIitr .ssets it the begintrirg of the ycar

Contributions paid into the plan

Benefits paid

lnterest income

Re-measuremehrs

- changes in dernographic assumptions

- retum on plan asset

Balatrce at the etrd ofthe yesr

65.05

5.52

(9.r6)

4.65

52.41

14.48

(5.68)

3.36

(0.13)

65.73

0.49

65.05

Net delined tlenefit liability 1.30 r.42

!t

4.39

(e.16)
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Populsr Megs Motors (lndir) Private Limited

Notes to the finrncial statemcnts (contirucd)

(All amounts in INR millions)

3l Employee bcnellts (continued)

D Expens$ recognised in the strndalone statemcnt of profit and loss

(l) Expenses recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss

Particulars As at 3lst
Mar.h 2024

Yesr ended

3l Msrch 2023

Current s€rvice cosl

Past s€rvice cost

Net interest on net defined liability

Employer Contribution

Net gntuity coit

10.64 9.01

1.03

(5.52)

6.15

0.03

(r4.48)

(5.44)

(ii) Remeasuremcnts recognised in other stve tncome

Plm Asset

Plan asset compris€s of the following

Particulars As at 3lst
March 2024

Year ended

3l Msrch 2023

Funds managed by Lite Insurance Corporation of lndia 65.05

The Company males arnual c.ntribution to the Life Insuiance Corporation of India ( 'LIC') of an amounr advised by LlC. Tne

Compary was not informed by LIC of the investments made by than or the break up of the plan assets into various type of
investm€flts.

F Dcflned Betrelit Obllg.don

(i) Actuarial Aliumptlorr

The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the rcponing date (expressed as weightgd average)

The weighted average assumptions used to daermine net periodic benefit cost as set out below;

Assumptions regarding future mortality expsrience are set in accordance with the stardard table - IALM 2012- 14 (Uhimate). The

Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-tetrn plans ofgrowth and prevalent industry standards. The discount

rate is based on prevailing market yields of govemment securities .

Cratuity is applicable only to ernploye€s drawing a salary in lndian rupees and fiere arc no oth€r foreign defined b€nefit gratuity

plans.

(ii) Serritlvity .tr8lydr

Rqsonably possible changes at the r€porting date to one of the actuarial assumptions, holding othef, assumptions constant, would

have affected the defined b€ efir obligation by the p€rceotage shown below:

As at 3l March 2024 As at 3l lvarch 2021

lncrease Decrcase lncrease Dccrease

Discount rate (0.5olo movernent)

Future salary growth (0.5% moveflent)

-2.5tvo 2.649/o 2.70%

2.59% -2.490/o 2.640/r -2.53%

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of the cash flows expecled undg4q@{does provide an

approximation ofthe sensitivity ofthe assumption shown. //GI:i l'ie.\

lEi \:;'il

Kr.#

As at 3l st

March 2024

Year ended

3l Mirch 2023

Particulars

OCI at the beginnlng ofthe year

Actuarial (gainy loss on defined beoefit obligation

Rotum on plan asset excluding interest income

Net grrtuity cost

(r l.l2)

(2-31)

0.33

(13.10)

(r2.46)

1.83

(0.49)

(lr.r2)

Particulars As at 3lst
March 2024

Year ended

-11 Msrch 2023

Discount rate

Salary growth rate

Attrition rate

7.15n/o

6.OO%

l4Yn P.^

withdrawal rate

at all ages

't.30,/.

7.Wo

l4o/o p.a

withdrawal rate

at all ages

Weighted average duration of defined borefit obligaiton 5.40 yea6 5.21 yars

Particulars

65.73



r uhr Megs Motors (lndie) Private Limited

Notes to the finrtrcirl strtemetrs (continued)

(All amounts in lndian rupees)

32 Relsted prrties

I. Names oJ related panies aad description of relationship:

(a) Entity having significant influence over the company

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

(b) Subsidiaries and st€p down subsidiaries

Vision MotoF Private Limited

(c) Other rclated parties wherE control exists

- Key managemert personnel atd lheir rclativG (KMP)

Mr. Naveen Philip, Managing Director

Mrs. Shalet John, Director

Mrs. Susan Francis, Dir€ctor

Mri Malini Eape4 Dircctor

Mr.Mathew Thomas,Director

Mr,B€nny KJ, Dirertor *

Mr. Jacob Kuria& Dir€ctor

Mr. Rushil John, Relative of KMP

Mrs. l-cela Philip, Relativc of KMP

Mr, Biju Jose Thonas, CEO

Mrs. Surya Jacob, Company Secretary

'Appoin ted u.e.[. 2 1.05. 202 3

- Entities in which KMP has significant iDfluenc€

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited

Popular Auto Works Private Limited

Keracon Equipments Privare Limited

KuttuLaran Engine R€builders

PEbal Motors P.ivate Limited

Kutrkaran Homes LLP

Kuttukaran CrE n Private Limited

Kuttukaratl CaIs h,,t Ltd

Kuttukarln l[stitute of Human Resource D€velopm€nt (KIHRD)

ll. Related parl! tru Mctions:

(a) The has entered into the folloui rransacnon\ \\rih reiared

Income from r. t

Rent

Particulars
Year ended

Slst March 2024

Year ended

3lst March 2023

Reretrue from operetiotrs

Popular vehicles and Services Limited

Kuttukaran Cars P\t Ltd

Vision Motors Pdvate Limited

Prabal MotoB Private Limited

Auto Dealers P\.t. Ltd

0.21

0.03

0.87

1.14

t.66

L0?

2.97

0.95

0. r8Popular Vehicles and Senices Limited 0. r2

Nareen Philip

Rushil John

Kuttukkaran Homes Limited

Vehicles alld Services Limited

0.97

0.81

L96

0.48

1.03

0.79

3.44

0.48

rl

cco



I I. Related parii trdnsaclions(Continued)

Partirulars
Year erded

3l st March 2024

Year ended

3l st March 2023

Work Chargc/Labour Charges Income/Other Income

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited

Prabal Motors Private Limited

Kuttukkaran Gre€n Private Limited

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Kuttukaran Cars P\t Ltd

0.28

0.0 t

0.40

0.49

0.01

0.23

0.00

0.25

Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited

Notes to the Iinaneial statemetrh (continued)

(All amounts in hdian rupees, except share data and where other[ise stated)

Related parties (cotrtiDued)

IL Related paflr transactions (continued)

Particulars
Year ended

31st March 2024

Year ended

3lst March 2023

Sale of assets

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Vision Motors Private Limited

Kuttukaran Cars Pvt Ltd 0.14

0.83

0.03

Repairs and maitrtenance

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Vision Motors Private Limited

Popular Auto Works Private Limited

Kuttukkaran Trade ventures

Pmbal Motors Private Limited

0.32

0.40

0.42

0.06

0.09

0.29

0.26

0.08

Expcnses met on behalf ofthe company

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Prabal Motors Private Limited

Vision Motors Private Limited

Kutrukkaran Gr€en Private Limited

Kuttukkaran Homes Limited

Kutrukaran Cars Pvt Ltd

Popular Auto Works Private Limited

Popular Auto Deale6 Private Limited

5.59

0.06

0.17

0.15

0.08

0.01

0.71

0.10

0.02

0.t2

0.24

0.02

0.56

Expcnses met b! the compan)

Popular Vehicles & Services Private Limited

Vision Motors Private Limited

Kuttukaran Institute of Human Resource Development (K[HRD)

Popular Auto Works Private Limited

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited

Kuttukkaran Cars Private Limited

2.59

0.24

0.1I

0.18

0.06

3.42

0.21

0.39

0.02

Purchasc of goods

Prabal Moto6 Private Limited

Popular Auto Dealer Private Limited

0.21

r.99 2.47

Purahase of assets

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Vision Motors Private Limited

Kuttukkaran Cars Private Limited

Popular Auto Worl6 Private Limited

l.l4
1.27

8.20

1.83

0.00

0.00

32
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Particulars
Yerr endcd

3lst Nrsrch 2024

Year e[ded

3lst March 2023

lntercorporate loen rec€ived

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

lnterest on Inter Corporste t,oan Prid

Popular Vehicles and Sflvices Limited

Remunerstion

Mr.Naveen Philip

Mr.Btu Jose Thomas

Incetrtive

Mr.NaveeD Philip

Corporate Guarrtee Commission Expense

Popular vehicles and Ser.,,ices Limited

Corporate Gusretee Commission lncome

Vision Moto6 Private Limited

500.00

l.4l

9.66

3.80

8.91

0.70

11.78

3.6t

7.62

0.52

Populsr Mega Motors (Indi|) Private Limited

Notes to the frnilcial stat€ments (continued)

(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

I- Related pan! Ralanus:

lntercorporate loan

500.00

6.23

0.1

0.09

0.05

0.09

0.06

0.06

t.21

1.20

0.r2

0.03

0.30

0.0r

0.04

0.06

t.94

0.29

Popular vehicles and Services Limited

Trade recei!ables

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Vision Moto6 Private Limited

Kuttukkaran Geen Private Limiled

Kuttukaran CaIs Pr,l Lld

Prabal Motors Private Limited

Popular Auto Dealers Privale Limited

Trade palable

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Kuttukarfi Homes LLP

Popular Auto Dealels Private Limited

Vision Motors P.ivate Limited

Naveen Philip

Mr Rushil John

Kultukkaran Green Privale Limited

Kuttukkaran Engjne RebuildeN

Prabal Motors Private Limited

Inter€st on Intercorporate loan payable

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Corporste Guarantee Commission Psysbl€

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Corporate Guarantee Commission Receivable

Vision Moto6 Private Limited

lV. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either llom borrowed funds or share premium or any other

sources or kind of funds) by the Co pany to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

("tntermediaries") with the understanding, whether rocorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intsrmediary shall lend

or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalfofthe Company ("Ultimate Beneticiaries") or
provide any guamntee, secudty or like on behalfof the Ultinate Benelicifiies.

V. The Company has not receivql any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies) ("Funding Party") with the

understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalfofthe Funding P

or provide any guamntee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries

q
AM

0c

b

eficiaries ')



Populrr Mega Motors (lndir) Private Limited

Notes lo the financirl ststements (coDtitrued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

33 Msnrgerlsl Remutrcrrtior

The remunemtion paid by the Company during the period ended 3lst March 2024 is Rs.9.66 Million based on the

decision in the board meeting held on l5th July 2022.The remuneration paid by the Company during th e peiod 2022:23

was Rs.l1.78 Million

34 Pursuant to MCA Notification dated 22.01.2021, the details ofunspent liability towards CSR obligations as on

31.03.2024 are as below:

(i) Gross amount required to be spont during the ycar

(ii) Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year

(iii) Amount spent during the year :

Construction / acquisition of asset

On purposes other than above

(iv) (Shortfall) / Excess at the end ofthe year

(v) Total ofprevious years shonfall

(vi) Details ofrelated party baDsactions

(yii) WherE provisiqn is made \i,ith rcspect to a liability incurred by entering into

a contractual obligation, the rrovetnents in the provision during the year

should bc

shown seperately

(yiii) Rcason for shortfall

(ix) years)

a) Payment to Prime Ministe/s National Relicf Fund

b) Skill development

c) Education

d) Rural development

Current Period

(ln Millions)

2.73

2.73

3.07

0.34

NA

NA

NA

3.07

Previous Year

(ln Millions)

1.87

1.8 7

l.8il

0.01

1.46

NA

NA

NA

1.83

e) Paymenl to Trust

0 Medical Assistance

1.46 0.05

0.l4

35 During the period, transaction incurred in foreign exchage in connection with foreign travel is Rs 0.88 million.(Rs.0.59

million)

\\r.-\ cocuru zt,w

ln pursuance of the General circular No. l4l202 I dated 25.08.2021 read with the clarification by the Institute of Chartercd

Accountants of India, CSR expenses arising out of the obligtaion for the immediately preceding financial year is

recognised as expense as and when the same is incurred and provision for unspent amount towards CSR liability would

be created only at the end ofth€ reporting period.
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Popula 'legr Motors (lndia) Privite Limited

Notes to the fin.trcirl ststements (continued)

(All amounts in Indian rup€s million)

JE Ratios rs per the Schedule lll requirements

I Current Ratio = Current Assets divided Current Liabilities

Reason for Variance more than 25%:

The variance is mainly due to th€ partial r€payment of Shon term loans fiom the proceeds of Inter Co.porate [.oan.

2 Debt lt ratio = Total debl divided by Total equity $ here totsl debt refers to sum of current & non current borrorr ings

* Shon Term Borrowings includes Cuneat Maturities of Non Currenl Eoftoi,ihgs

.1 Debt Service Coverage Ratio IEBITDA"/(lnterest Cost + term +short term borrwoin

{ Return on uit! Ratio / Return on lnvestment Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Equity

5 Net profit rstio = Net after taJr dirided br Sales

Particulars March 31.202.1 March 31,2023

Current Asscts

Cunent Liabilities

Ratio

% Change liom previous yeaJ

2,488.58

1,56t.72

t.59

25.97%

2,2t8.01

1.153.43

1.26

Particulars March 31,2023

Shcrt Terrn Borowings * 
[a]

Non Current Bonowings [b]
Total debt

Total equity

Ratio

% Change fiom prwious year

1, r87.3r

5r3.82

t,70t.13

I, t61.38

t.46

t5.63%

I,242.33

83.50

1,325.83

1,046.60

1.27

Particulars Year ended

-11 March 2024

Year ended

3l March 2023

EBITDA

lnterest Cost

Long Term Borrowings

Shon Term Borrowings*

Debt Scrvice Coversge Rrtio

% Change from previous year end

391.91

t44.41

5 r3.82

r,187.31

0.21

-t9.t9%

383.28

132.71

83.50

1,242.33

0.26

Particulars March 31.2024 March 31.2023

Net Profit after tax

Total equity

Ratio

9o Change fiom previous year

I t3.30

1,16t.38

0. t0

-13.t90/"

117.62

I,M6.60

0.tI

Particulars March 31.2024 March 31,2023

Net Profit ater tax

Sales

Ratio

% Change frorn pnevious year

u3.30

13,092.96

0.01

6.3t%

I t't.62

14,449.54

0.01

I oc

c

\\ tflce

37 Segmeot Reporti[g

The Company is engaged in the business ofpurchase and sale ofvehicles and related services. The entire operations are cnganised and managed

as one organisational unit with the same set of risks and retums, hence the same has beeo considered as ftpresenting a single primary segm€nt.

The Company rvrders its services in India ooly and does not have any operations in economic environments with diff€rent risks and rdumsi
hence it is consideled opq"ating in a single gcographic segment. Accordingly, no segment disclosure has been made in th€se financial statements.

March 31,2024



Popula lega Motors (lndi!) Prlvste Limited

Notcs to the linsncid ststemerts (contioued)

(All amounts in lndian rupees mjllion)

6 Inventory Tur[over R.tio = Cost of mrterids consumed divided by clositrg inventory

March 31,2024 March 31.2023

Purchase of stock in trade [a]

Changes in inventories ofstock-in-trade [b]

Cost of Mrterid Consumed lrl+lbl
Cloeing Invortory

Ratio

7o Change from previous year

I1,858.39

- 34.69

n,E93.07

I,0 t9.03

I t.67

-5.060/0

r3,381.53

-171.47

r 3,210.06

t,o'14.63

12.29

7 Net capital Turnover R tio : Totel income dirided by Net 'l*brking capital lrhereas net $orking cepitel= current assets - currenl liebilities

Particulars March 31.2024 March 31.2023

Total incorne

Current Asset Ia]

Current Liability [b]

Net Workitrg Captirl Ial-lbl
Ratio
oZ Change liorr previous year

13,204.64

2,4',73.73

1,561.'t2

912.01

14.48

-54.65yo

14,482.22

2,201.M

1,753.43

453.63

3t.92

Reason fo Variance more than 250lo:

The variance is mainly due to the fall in sales, panial repayment of Short t€nn loons frorn the goceeds of tntet

Corporate Lrsn.

Total lncome/Trade ReceiYable

9 Return on Capitsl employed=Errnings before interest atrd tsres(EBIT) divided Capital fmployed

Reason for Variance more than 25%:

The l,ariance is mainly due to the partial r€payment of Short tefm loans iion the proceeds of Inter Corporate Loan

l0 Trade able lurnover Ratio Purchase of stock in trade/'l rade ble

Paniculars Varch -'l1.202.1 March 31.2023

Total Income

Trade Receivable

Trsde Receivsble Turnover Rstlo

% Chaoge fiom previous year end

l3,2U.U
I,092.61

12.09

-19.100/,

t4,482.22

969.43

14.94

Particulars March 31,2024 March I1-2023

EBIT

Total Asset [a]

Curreit Liability [b]

Crpitrl Employcd lrFlbl
Ratio

% Change from previous year

286. r9

3,5'12.58

I,561.72

2,010.86

0.14

-26.880/0

Particulars March 31,2024 March 3l,2023

Purchase of Stock in trade

Trade Payable

Tr&de Paysble Turnover Ratio

Yo Change from previous year end

I t,858.39

105. l5

n2.78

19.o50/,

13,381.53

141.26

94.73

P rica
e

al\

Particulars

8 Trade Receilable 'Iurnover Rltio

( )

\.i

29t.'14

3,252.26

1,753.43

1,498.83

0.19



Populor Megr Motorr (lndia) Privete Limited

Notes to the finucial st temerts (continued)

(All amounts in Indian rupe€s million)

39. Capital Managemert

The Companys policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor ard market confidence and to !

futurc development of the busin€ss. Managernent monitors capital on the basis of retum on capital emplo)'€d as well as the (

to total equity ratio. For the purpose ofdebt to total equity mtio, debt considered is long-term and short{erm bonowings.

Total equity comprise of issued share capital and olher equity

P!rticulars

Total Equity attributable to the Equity sharcholde$

ofthe company

As i p€rcert ge of totcl capit l

Inng - Tenn boriowings

Short - Term borrowings

Total borrowings

As a percent ge of totrl capitrl

Totrl Clpitrl (Equi8 and Borrowitrgs)

40. Previous Year figures are regtouped wherever found necessary

Mlrch 31, 2024

1,161.38

4loh

5 r3.82

1,187.31

1,701.13

590h

2,862.51

DIN

Surya Jacob

Company Secretary

8827 DIN: 00018828

March 31, 2023

1,046.60

44r/"

83.50

1,242.33

1,125.83

56vo

2,372.43

omas

ChiefExecutive Offir

\

Place : Kochi

Date :

%
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